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lthe Company
Homeowners Choice Inc headquartered in Clear-water Florida is an insurance

holding company which began operations in 2007 Through its wholly-owned

insurance subsidiary Homeowners Choice Property Casualty Insurance

Company Inc Homeowners Choice provides property and casualty

homeowners insurance condominium owners insurance and tenants

insurance Its insurance operations are regulated by the Florida Office of

Insurance Regulation which oversees the rates conduct and financial solvency

of Florida insurers The company mitigates its risk from catastrophes through

comprehensive reinsurance program Homeowners Choice plans to relocate its

headquarters to Tampa Florida in 2011

Demotech Inc leading actuarial and financial analysis firm has awarded

Homeowners Choice Property Casualty Insurance Company Inc Financial

Stability Rating of Exceptional Demotechs Financial Stability Ratings are

designed to indicate the financial stability of property and casualty insurer

The companys common shares trade on the NASDAQ Global Select Market

under the ticker symbol HCII and are included in the Russell Microcap Index

Its warrants trade on the same market under the ticker symbol HCIIW

Its preferred shares trade on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the ticker

symbol HCIIP

More information about Homeowners Choice Inc is available at www.hcpci.com

Financial Highlights

Dollars in thousands

except per share amounts

Operating Data

Gross premiums earned

Total revenue

Net premiums earned

Net income

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents

Total investments

Total assets

Losses and loss adjustment expenses
Unearned premiums

Total liabilities

Total stockholders equity

Book value per share

Year Ended
Dec 31 2010

119757

68615

62435
5422

0.88

0.81

At Dec 31 2010

54849
43481

140948

22146

65034

94319

46629
7.51

Year Ended
Dec 31 2009

110011

68378
65337
10910

1.62

1.52

At Dec 31 2009

43453
48343

137892

19178

68509
92514

45378
7.03

Perfection is unattainable

But we chase perfection

we can catch excellence

6205396 and 6456635 shares issued and outstanding at December 31st 2010 and 2009 respectively



Letter from the

Chairmanof the Board

Fellow Shareholders

Homeowners Choice has enjoyed yet another year of profitability despite what

many consider an adverse economic climate As noted in the financial summary

on the previous page we posted 6.8 percent increase in per share book value

in 2010 and an 8.9 percent increase in gross premiums earned in comparison with

2009 In addition stockholders equity increased to $46.6 million

Although reinsurance is Florida insurers largest cost catastrophe models led

us to increase our reinsurance coverage Despite that we were able to keep

our costs relatively close to those of the previous year The season did prove

to be an active one but fortunately none of the hurricanes made landfall in Florida

Our premium rates increased 14 percent on average beginning in April 2010

In addition we received regulatory approval to assume up to 10000 policies

from Citizens Property Insurance Corporation in December These positive

developments have contributed to continued profitability as has the strength of

our infrastructure which reflects carefully selected and scalable balance of

in-house and outsourced capabilities

--
In June 2010 the company purchased an office building in Tampas prestigious

Westshore district where we plan to relocate our operations in mid-2011

Finally in keeping with our commitment to our shareholders the company paid

its first-ever cash dividend in December in addition to its share buyback program

by which it repurchase 311259 shares in 2010



We believe we are well positioned for growth and thank our shareholders

staff and other stakeholders for their support We look forward to continuing our

commftment to strategic growth made possible by robust business processes

and careful mitigation of risk

Sincerely

Paresh Patel

Executive Chairman of the Board

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements made pursuant to

the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Words such as anticipate

estimate expect intend plan and project and other similar words and

expressions are intended to signify forward-looking statements Forward-looking

statements are not guarantees of future results and conditions They are subject to

various risks and uncertainties Some of these risks and uncertainties are identified

in the companys filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission Should

any risks or uncertainties develop into actual events these developments could

have material adverse effects on the companys business financial condition and

results of operations Homeowners Choice Inc disclaims all obligations to update

any forward-looking statements
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PARTI

-% ITEM 1Business

General

Homeowners Choice Inc is property and casualty insurance holding company incorporated in Florida in 2006 Through our

subsidiaries which consist of Homeowners Choice Managers Inc Southem Administration Inc Claddaugh Casualty Insurance

Company Ltd and Homeowners Choice Property Casualty Insurance Company Inc and its subsidiary HCPCI Holdings LLC we
currently provide property and casualty homeowners insurance condominium-owners insurance and tenants insurance to

individuals owning property in Florida We offer these insurance products at competitive rates while pursuing profitability using

selective underwriting criteria Our property and casualty business is our only reportable segment Our fmancial information is set

forth in Part II Item

Our principal executive offices are located at 2340 Drew Street Suite 200 Clearwater Florida 33765 and our telephone

number is 727 213-3600

We file annual quarterly and current reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC These filings are

accessible free of charge on our website www.hcpci.com click SEC filings at the Investors tab as soon as reasonably

practicable after they have been electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC The SEC maintains an Intemet site that contains

reports proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers which you can access via the SECs website at

www.sec.gov In addition these filings are accessible at the SECs Public Reference Room which is located at 100 Street NE
Washington DC 20549 Information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-

SEC-0330

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we had total assets of $140.9 million and $137.9 million respectively and stockholders

equity of $46.6 million and $45.4 million respectively Our net income was approximately $5.4 million and $10.9 million

respectively for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Company History

We began operations in June of 2007 by participating in take-out program through which we assumed insurance policies

held by Citizens Property Insurance Corporation Citizens Florida state-supported insurer The take-out program is legislatively

mandated program designed to reduce the states risk exposure by encouraging private companies to assume policies from Citizens

Policies were assumed in eight separate assumption transactions which took place in July and November 2007 February June
October and December 2008 December 2009 and December 2010 Substantially all of our premium revenue since inception comes
from these assumptions We currently have approximately 65000 policies in force Of those policies assumed approximately 86% are

homeowners insurance policies and the remaining 14% are combination of policies written for condominium-owners and tenants

Our current policies in force represent approximately $135 million in annualized premiums

Citizens requires us to offer renewals on the policies we acquire for period of three years subsequent to the initial expiration of

the assumed policies The policyholders have the option to renew with us or they may ask their agent to place their coverage with

another insurance company We strive to retain these policies by offering competitive rates to our policyholders

We face various challenges to implementing our operating and growth strategies Since we write policies that cover Florida

homeowners condominium owners and tenants we cover losses that may arise from among other things catastrophes which could

have significant effect on our business results of operations and financial condition To mitigate our risk of such losses we cede

portion of our exposure to other entities under catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance treaties Even without catastrophic events we

may incur losses and loss adjustment expenses that deviate substantially from our estimates and that may exceed our reserves in

which case our net income and capital would decrease Our operating and growth strategies may also be impacted by regulation of our

business by the State of Florida which must
approve our policy forms and premium rates as well as monitor our insurance

subsidiarys ability to meet all requirements for regulatory compliance Additionally we compete with large well-established

insurance companies as well as other specialty insurers that in most cases possess greater fmancial resources larger agency networks
and greater name recognition See Item 1A Risk Factors below



Competition

We operate in highly competitive markets where we face competition from national regional and residual market insurance

companies Many of our competitors have larger financial capacities greater resource availability and more diversification in tenns of

insurance coverage Our competitors include companies which market their products through agents as well as companies which sell

insurance directly to their customers Large national insurers may have certain competitive advantages such as increased name

recognition increased loyalty of their customer base and reduced policy acquisition costs Additionally as described in greater detail

below in Government Regulation the Florida legislature passed new law in 2007 authorizing Citizens to reduce its premium rates

and begin competing against private insurers in the residential property insurance market and expanding the authority of Citizens to

write commercial insurance We may also face competition from new or temporary entrants in our niche markets In some cases such

entrants may because of inexperience desire for new business or other reasons price their insurance below ours Although our

pricing is inevitably influenced to some degree by that of our competitors we believe that it is generally not in our best interest to

compete solely on price We compete on the basis of underwriting criteria our independent agent network and superior service to our

agents and insureds

Seasonality of Our Business

We expect to experience increases in our losses and loss adjustment expenses during the period from June through

November 30 each year as this is typically the period during which hurricanes and other tropical storms may occur As result of such

seasonal variations in our reported losses we anticipate our operating profits during the period from June through November 30

each year may be negatively impacted by an increase in losses and loss adjustment expenses

Government ReRula don

We are subject to the laws and regulations in Florida and the regulations of any other states in which we may seek to conduct

business in the fUture The regulations cover all aspects of our business and are generally designed to protect the interests of insurance

policyholders as opposed to the interests of shareholders Such regulations relate to authorized lines of business capital and surplus

requirements allowable rates and forms investment parameters underwriting limitations transactions with affiliates dividend

limitations changes in control market conduct maximum amount Ællbwable for premium financing service charges and variety of

other fmancial and non-fmancial components of our business Our failure to comply with certain provisions of applicable insurance

laws and regulations could have material adverse effect on our business results of operations or fmancial condition In addition any

changes in such laws and regulations including the adoption of consumer initiatives regarding rates charged for coverage could

materially and adversely affect our operations or our ability to expand Recent legislation among other things reduces anticipated

reinsurance costs and expands the role of Citizens Other provisions contained in the recent legislation prevent non-renewals and

cancellation except for material misrepresentation and non-payment of premium and new restrictions on coverage were prohibited

until January 2010 We are unaware of any other consumer initiatives which could have material adverse effect on our business

results of operations or fmancial condition

Certain states have recently adopted laws or are considering proposed legislation which among other things limit the ability of

insurance companies to effect rate increases or to cancel reduce or non-renew insurance coverage with respect to existing policies As

--

--

-- discussed above the recent consumer initiatives with Floridas property insurers demonstrate the states ability to adopt such laws or

--
to effectuate these policies through interpretations of existing laws Also the Florida legislature may adopt additional laws of this type

in the fUture which may adversely affect our business In most years the Florida legislature considers bills affecting the residential

property insurance market in Florida Property insurance legislation passed in 2008 increases penalties on insurers for noncompliance

with the insurance code establishes private cause of action relating to insurers claims payment practices and extends the notice

period applicable to insurers nonrenewals of certain residential policies The legislature also revised procedures goveming insurers

rate filings

Most states including Florida require licensure and regulatory approval prior to the marketing of new insurance products

Typically licensure review is comprehensive and includes review of companys business plan solvency reinsurance character of

its officers and directors rates forms and other fmancial and non-financial aspects of company The regulatory authorities may not

allow entry into new market by not granting license or by withholding approval In addition regulatory authorities may preclude or

delay our entry into markets by disapproving or withholding approval of our product filings As new insurance company we are

subject to examinations with respect to our first three years in business which includes the years ended December 31 2008 2009 and

2010

All insurance companies must file quarterly and annual statements with certain regulatory agencies and are subject to regular

and special examinations by those agencies In accordance with the National Association of Insurance Commissioners NAIC the

Florida Office of Insurance Regulation Florida OIR intends to comply with recent initiatives recommending that all insurance

companies under the same insurance holding company registration statement be subjected to concurrent triennial examinations Our

subsidiary Homeowners Choice Property Casualty Insurance Company Inc is subject to Florida OIR examinations



Employees

As of March 15 2011 we employ 80 individuals all of whom are full-time employees and working pnmanly from our

headquarters in Clearwater Florida

Executive Officers

The following table provides information with respect to our executive officers

Name
Age Position

Richard Allen 64 Chief Financial Officer

.---- Andrew Graham 53 Vice President General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Francis McCahill III 63 President and ChiefExecutive Officer

Jay Madhu 44 Vice President of Marketing and Director of Investor Relations

Paresh Patel 48 Executive Chairman Strategic Planning and Investments

Richard Allen has served as the Chief Financial Officer of our company since November 2006 and also serves as director of
our subsidiary Claddaugh Casualty Insurance Company Ltd Mr Allen has over thirty years of experience in

property/casualty
insurance finance and management to include agencyThroker relations reinsurance and fmancial controls and reporting and third pa
administration He has held various positions with several insurance companies as ChiefFinancial Officer Controller and Senior

Accounting Manager From 1999 to 2005 Mr Allen served as the Internal Auditor of Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield From
1996 to 1998 Mr Allen served as Controller for Symons International Group From 1994 to 1996 Mr Allen served as

Controller/Treasurer of Coronet Insurance In addition Mr Allen served as the Budget/Cost Manager of Bankers Life and Casualty
from 1982 to 1990 and as the Controller of Bankers Standard Insurance Company an affiliate of CIGNA from 1969 to 1981 He has

experience in forensic accounting and has participated as consultant in numerous projects with state insurance departments
Mr Allen earned his Bachelor of Science Degree from Quincy University in Quincy Illinois

Andrew Graham has served as our General Counsel since June 2008 and also currently serves as our Corporate Secretary
Mr Graham served from 1999 to 2007 in various capacities including General Counsel for Trinsic Inc previously named Z-Tel

Technologies Inc publicly-held provider of communications services headquartered in Tampa Florida Mr Graham also serves on
the Board of Trustees of Hillsborough Community College Mr Graham holds Bachelor of Science degree from Florida State

University and Juris Doctor as well as Master of Laws L.L.M in Taxation from the University of Florida College of Law

Francis McCahill III has served as our President and ChiefExecutive Officer and as director of our company since November
2006 He also currently serves as the President and as director of each of our five subsidiaries Mr McCahill insurance career

began in 197 His experience includes senior level positions with major insurance brokerage firms including Frank Hall and
Johnson Higgins From 1977 to 1988 he managed the worldwide Risk Management Programs of New York City-based Bristol-

Myers Squibb Corp Norton Simon Inc and Florida-based Harris Corporation In 1991 after managing Johnson Higgins Central

Florida Region Mr McCahill founded Braishfield of Florida Inc and Pollution Liability United States Inc As founder/president of

those organizations he established both entities as major insurance service providers throughout Florida Mr McCahill also founded

Cypress Underwriters Inc of Port St Lucie Florida where he served as President from 1999 to 2006 In addition Mr McCahill was
Tribunalized at Lloyds of London Mr McCahill attended the United States Merchant Marine Academy earned his Bachelors

Degree from St Johns University College of Insurance and attended Concord University School of Law He received number of

Certificates in finance and risk management from the Wharton School of Business and the University of Florida

Jay Madhu is currently Vice President of Marketing and Director of Investor Relations having served as our Director of

Investor Relations since February 2008 Additionally Mr Madhu has been director of our company since May 2007 As an owner
and manager of commercial properties Mr Madhu has been president of 5th Avenue Group LC since 2002 and President of Forrest

Terrace LC since 1999 In addition Mr Madhu is an investor in banking and health maintenance organizations He has also been

President of The Mortgage Corporation Network correspondent lenders since 1996 Prior to that Mr Madhu was Vice President
-- mortgage division First Trust Mortgage Finance from 1994 to 1996 Vice President residential first mortgage division

Continental Management Associates Limited Inc from 1993 to 1994 and President SS Development Inc from 1991 to 1993 He
attended Northwest Missouri State University where he studied marketing and management



Paresh Pate is currently Executive Chairman Strategic Planning and Investments Mr Patel has been director of our

company since November 2006 and has served as the Chairman of our Board since May 2007 His analytical and technology skills

were developed through experience with intemational financial telecommunications and consulting positions As private investor

from 2000 to 2006 Mr Patel used statistical and probability techniques to develop and implement system for managing money as

business to generate cash flow Prior to that Mr Patel was director of customer care and billing with Global Crossing from 1998 to

2000 In that position Mr Patel defmed business processes
and systems hired and trained department staff and led the merger of the

customer care and billing systems with those of the companys acquisitions As an independent consultant from 1991 to 1998

Mr Patel worked with large intemational telephone companies Mr Patel received his bachelors and masters degrees in Electronic

Engineering from Cambridge University England

ITEM 1ARiskFactors

Our business is subject to number of risks including those described below which could have material effect on our results

of operations financial condition or liquidity and additionally could cause our operating results to vary significantly from period to

period

We currently conduct business in Florida only Thus any single catastrophic event or other condition affecting losses in

Florida could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

While we actively manage our exposure to catastrophic events through our underwriting process and the purchase of

reinsurance single catastrophic event destructive weather pattern general economic trend regulatory development or other

condition specifically affecting the state of Florida could have disproportionately adverse impact on our business financial

condition and results of operations In addition the fact that our business is concentrated in the state of Florida subjects it to increased

exposure to certain catastrophic events and destructive weather pattems such as hurricanes tropical storms and floods Changes in the

prevailing regulatory legal economic political demographic competitive and other conditions in the state of Florida could also

make it less attractive for us to do business in Florida and would have more pronounced effect on our business than it would on other

insurance companies that are geographically diversified Since our business is concentrated in this manner the occurrence of one or

more catastrophic events or other conditions affecting losses in the state of Florida could have an adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations

Our results may fluctuate based on many factors including cyclical changes in the insurance industry

The insurance business historically has been cyclical industry characterized by periods of intense price competition due to

excessive underwriting capacity as well as periods when shortages of capacity permitted an increase in pricing and thus more

favorable underwriting profits An increase in premium levels is offset over time by an increased supply of insurance capacity either

by capital provided by new entrants or by the commitment of additional capital by existing insurers which may cause prices to

decrease Any of these factors could lead to significant reduction in premium rates less favorable policy terms and fewer

opportunities to underwrite insurance risks which could have material adverse effect on our results of operations and cash flows In

addition to these considerations changes in the frequency and severity of losses suffered by insureds and insurers may affect the

cycles of the insurance business significantly

We cannot predict whether market conditions will improve remain constant or deteriorate Negative market conditions may

impair our ability to write insurance at rates that we consider appropriate relative to the risk assumed If we cannot write insurance at

appropriate rates our business would be materially and adversely affected

We may be unable to attract and retain qualified personnel

Our operations are highly dependent on the efforts of our senior executive officers in particular our President and Chief

Executive Officer Francis McCahill our ChiefFinancial Officer Richard Allen and our Executive Chairman Paresh Patel The loss

of their leadership industry knowledge and experience could negatively impact our operations With the exception of Mr McCahill

and Mr Allen we have no employment agreements with any of our personnel nor do we have any guarantee of any employees

ongoing service

We do not have significant redundancy in our operations

We conduct our business from offices located in Clearwater and Tampa Florida an area subject to tropical storms which could

damage our facilities or interrupt our power supply The loss or significant impairment of functionality in these facilities for any

reason could have material adverse effect on our business as we do not have significant redundancies to replace either facility if

functionality is impaired We have recently contracted with third party vendor to maintain complete daily backups of our systems

which are stored at the vendors facility in Atlanta Georgia Access to these databases is strictly controlled and limited to authorized

personnel While we have implemented daily off-site backups we have not fully tested our plan to recover data in the event of

disaster



Our information technology systems may fall or suffer loss of security which could adversely affect our business

-- Our business is highly dependent upon the successful and uninterrupted functioning of our computer and data processing

systems We rely on these systems to perform actuarial and other modeling functions necessary for writing business as well as to

handle our policy administration process i.e the printing and mailing of our policies endorsements renewal notices etc The
successful operation of our systems depends on continuous supply of electricity The failure of these systems or disruption in the

supply of electricity could interrupt our operations This could result in material adverse effect on our business

The development and expansion of our business is dependent upon the successful development and implementation of advanced

computer and data processing systems Because our insurance subsidiary intends to expand its business by writing additional

voluntary policies we are developing new information technology systems to handle and
process an increased volume of voluntary

policies The failure of these systems to function as planned could slow our growth and adversely affect our future business volume
and results of operations

Because we believe that our independent agents will play key role in our efforts to increase the number of voluntary policies
written by our insurance subsidiary we are also in the

process of developing business platforms and distribution initiatives that will

allow us to provide information to and exchange information with our agents in an effective and efficient manner These systems are
intended to provide us with current information regarding the insurance markets in which we operate therefore permitting us to adjust
our selective underwriting criteria as needed to rapidly respond to market changes In the event that the development of these systems
does not proceed as planned the expansion of our business could be delayed Intemet disruptions or system failures once these

systems are fully operational could also adversely affect our future business volume and results of operations

In addition security breach of our computer systems could damage our reputation or result in liability We retain confidential

information regarding our business dealings in our computer systems We may be required to spend significant capital and other

resources to protect against security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by such breaches It is critical that these facilities and

infrastructure remain secure Despite the implementation of security measures this infrastructure may be vulnerable to physical break-

ins computer viruses programming errors attacks by third parties or similar disruptive problems In addition we could be subject to

liability if hackers were able to penetrate our network security or otherwise misappropriate confidential information

Increased competition competitive pressures industry developments and market conditions could affect the growth of our
business and adversely impact our financial results

The property and casualty insurance industry in Florida is cyclical and during times of increased capacity highly competitive
We compete not only with other stock companies hut also with mutual companies other underwriting organizations and altemative

risk sharing mechanisms Our principal lines of business are written by numerous other insurance companies Competition for any one
account may come from very large well-established national companies smaller regional companies other specialty insurers in our

field and other companies that write insurance only in Florida Many of these competitors have greater financial resources larger

agency networks and greater name recognition than our company We compete for business not only on the basis of price but also on
the basis of financial strength types of coverage offered availability of coverage desired by customers commission structure and

quality of service We may have difficulty continuing to compete successfully on any of these bases in the future Competitive

pressures coupled with market conditions may affect our rate of premium growth and financial results

Our ability to compete in the property and casualty insurance industry and our ability to expand our business may be negatively
affected by the fact that we are new company As new company that has been in business for less than five years we are not

eligible to be rated IJy A.M Best While our insurance subsidiary has obtained Demotech rating of Exceptional which is

accepted by mortgage companies operating in the state of Florida mortgage companies in other states may require homeowners to

obtain property insurance from an insurance company with certain minimum A.M Best rating As result the minimum A.M Best

rating requirement may also prevent us from expanding our business into other states in the near term which may in tum limit our

ability to compete with large national insurance companies and certain regional insurance companies

As new company our experience with claims and the risks related to certain claims is inherently limited These inherent

-- limitations may increase the likelihood that our projections and our estimates may be inaccurate which in tum may increase the

likelihood that our actual losses may exceed our loss reserves If our actual losses exceed our loss reserves our financial results our

ability to expand our business and our ability to compete in the property and casualty insurance industry may be negatively affected

In addition industry developments could further increase competition in our industry These developments could include

an influx of new capital in the marketplace as existing companies attempt to expand their businesses and new companies
attempt to enter the insurance business as result of better pricing and/or terms

programs in which state-sponsored entities provide property insurance in catastrophe-prone areas or other altemative

markets types of coverage

changes in Floridas regulatory climate and



the passage
of federal proposals for an optional federal charter that would allow some competing insurers to operate under

regulations different or less stringent than those applicable to our insurance subsidiary

These developments and others could make the property and casualty insurance marketplace more competitive by increasing the

supply of insurance available

If competition limits our ability to write new business at adequate rates our future results of operations would be adversely

affected

If our actual losses from insureds exceed our loss reserves our financial results would be adversely affected

Our objective is to establish loss reserves that are adequate and represent managements best estimate that is the amounts

originally recorded as reserves should at least equal the ultimate cost to investigate and settle claims However the process of

establishing adequate reserves is complex and inherently uncertain and the ultimate cost of claim may vary materially from the

amounts reserved We regularly monitor and evaluate loss and loss adjustment expense reserve development to verify reserve

adequacy

Due to these uncertainties the ultimate losses may vary materially from current loss reserves which could have material

adverse effect on our future financial condition results of operations and cash flows

The effects of emerging claim aud coverage issues on our business are uncertain

As industry practices and legal judicial social and other environmental conditions change unexpected and unintended issues

related to claims and coverage may emerge These issues may adversely affect our business by either extending coverage beyond our

underwriting intent or by increasing the number or size of claims In some instances these changes may not become apparent until

some time after we have issued insurance contracts that are affected by the changes As result the full extent of liability under our

insurance contracts may not be known for many years after contract is issued and renewed and our financial position and results of

operations may be adversely affected

The failure of our claims department to pay claims accurately- could adversely affect our business financial results and capital

requirements

We rely on our claims department to accurately evaluate and pay the claims made under our policies Many factors could affect

the ability of our claims department to accurately evaluate and pay claims including the accuracy of our extemal independent

adjusters as they make their assessments and submit their estimates of damages the training background and experience of our

claims representatives the ability of our claims department to ensure consistent claims handling given the input by our extemal

independent adjusters the ability of our claims department to translate the information provided by our extemal independent adjusters

into acceptable claims settlements the ability of our claims department to maintain and update its claims handling procedures and

systems as they evolve over time based on claims and geographical trends in claims reporting Any failure to pay claims accurately

could lead to material litigation undermine our reputation in the marketplace impair our corporate image and negatively affect our

financial results

If we are unable to expand our business because our capital must be used to pay greater than anticipated claims our financial

results may suffer

Our future growth will depend on our ability to expand the number of insurance policies we write in Florida to expand the kinds

of insurance products we offer and to expand the geographic markets in which we do business all balanced by the insurance risks we

choose to assume and cede Our existing sources of funds include possible sales of our securities and our eamings from operations and

investments Unexpected catastrophic events in our market areas such as the hurricanes experienced in Florida in recent years may
result in greater claims losses than anticipated which could require us to limit or halt our growth while we redeploy our capital to pay

these unanticipated claims unless we are able to raise additional capital



We may require additional capital in the future which may uot be available or may only be available on unfavorable terms

Our future capital requirements depend on many factors including our ability to write new business successfully and to

establish premium rates and reserves at levels sufficient to cover losses To the extent that our present capital is insufficient to meet
future operating requirements or to cover losses we may need to raise additional funds through financings or curtail our growtji
Based on our current operating plan we believe current capital together with our anticipated retained earnings will support our

operations However we cannot provide any assurance in that regard since many factors will affect our capital needs and their

amount and timing including our growth and profitability and the availability of reinsurance as well as possible acquisition

opportunities market disruptions and other unforeseeable developments If we require additional capital it is possible that equity or
debt financing may not be available at all or may be available only on terms that are not favorable to us In the case of equity

financings dilution to our shareholders could result and in any case such securities may have rights preferences and privileges that

are senior to those of existing shareholders If we cannot obtain adequate capital on favorable terms or at all our business fmancial

condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected On March 25 2011 we completed our preferred stock

offering We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering primarily for general corporate purposes which may include

contribution of capital to our insurance subsidiary investments and the pursuit of growth opportunities

Our financial results may be negatively affected by the fact that portion of our income is generated by the investment of our

companys capital and surplus premiums and loss reserves

portion of our income is and likely will continue to be generated by the investment of our companys capital and surplus

premiums and loss reserves The amount of income so generated is function of our investment policy available investment

opportunities and the amount of capital and surplus premium and loss reserves invested As we continue to grow and to deploy our
--

capital the proportion of income invested will decrease and investment income will make up smaller percentage of our net revenue
At December 31 2010 approximately 70% of our available cash was invested in money market accounts or in bank deposits i.e
CDs that generally mature in no more than thirteen months and approximately 30% was invested in fixed maturity and equity
securities We may alter our investment policy to accept higher levels of risk with the expectation of higher returns Fluctuating
interest rates and other economic factors make it impossible to estimate accurately the amount of investment income that will be

realized In fact we may realize losses on our investments

We have exposure to unpredictable catastrophes which can materially and adversely affect our financial results

We write insurance policies that cover homeowners condominium owners and tenants for losses that result from among other

things catastrophes We are therefore subject to claims arising out of catastrophes that may have significant effect on our business
results of operations and financial condition Catastrophes can be caused by various events including hurricanes tropical storms
tornadoes windstorms earthquakes hailstorms explosions power outages fifes and by man-made events such as terrorist attacks

The incidence and severity of catastrophes are inherently unpredictable The extent of losses from catastrophe is function of both

the total amount of insured exposure in the area affected by the event and the severity of the event Our policyholders are currently
concentrated in Florida which is especially subject to adverse weather conditions such as hurricanes and tropical storms Therefore

although we attempt to manage our exposure to catastrophes through our underwriting process and the purchase of reinsurance

protection an especially severe catastrophe or series of catastrophes could exceed our reinsurance protection and may have material

adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition See the risk factor below entitled Reinsurance coverage may not
be available to us in the future at commercially reasonable rates or at all and we risk non-collectibility of reinsurance amounts due us

from reinsurers with which we have contracted

Industry trends such as increased litigation against the insurance industry and individual insurers the willingness of courts to

expand covered causes of loss rising jury awards and the escalation of loss severity may contribute to increased costs and to

the deterioration of the reserves of our insurance subsidiary

Loss severity in the
property and casualty insurance industry has continued to increase in recent years principally driven by

larger court judgments In addition many legal actions and proceedings have been brought on behalf of classes of complainants
which can increase the size ofjudgments The propensity of policyholders and third party claimants to litigate and the willingness of

courts to expand causes of loss and the size of awards may render our loss reserves inadequate for current and future losses



Reinsurance coverage may not be available to us in the future at commercially reasonable rates or at all and we risk non
collectibility of reinsurance amounts due us from reinsurers with which we have contracted

Reinsurance is the practice of transferring part of an insurance companys liability and premium under an insurance policy to

another insurance company We use reinsurance arrangements to limit and manage the amount of risk we retain to stabilize our

underwriting results and to increase our underwriting capacity The cost of such reinsurance is subject to prevailing market conditions

beyond our control such as the amount of capital in the reinsurance market and natural and man-made catastrophes We cannot be

assured that reinsurance will remain continuously available to us in the amounts we consider sufficient and at prices acceptable to us
As result we may determine to increase the amount of risk we retain or look for other altematives to reinsurance which could in

turn have material adverse effect on our fmancial position results of operations and cash flows

With respect to the reinsurance treaties we currently have in effect our ability to recover amounts due from reinsurers is subject

to the reinsurance companys ability and willingness to pay and to meet their obligations to us While we attempt to select financially

strong reinsurers with an A.M Best rating of A- or better and monitor from time to time their financial condition we rely

principally on A.M Best our broker and other rating agencies in determining theft ability to meet their obligations to us Any failure

on the part of any one reinsurance company to meet its obligations to us could have material adverse effect on our fmancial

condition or results of operations

The failure of the risk mitigation strategies we utilize could have material adverse effect on our financial condition or results

of operations

We utilize number of strategies to mitigate our risk exposure which include

engaging invigorous underwriting

carefhlly evaluating terms and conditions of our policies

focusing on our risk aggregations by geographic zones credit exposure arid other bases and

ceding insurance risk to reinsurance companies

However there are inherent limitations in all of these tactics We cannot provide assurance that an event or series of

unanticipated events will not result in loss levels which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of

operations

The failure of any of the loss limitation methods we employ could have material adverse effect on our financial condition or

our results of operations

Our underwriting process is designed to limit our exposure to known risks including but not limited to exclusions relating to

homes in close proximity to the coast line Various provisions of our policies such as limitations or exclusions from coverage which

have been negotiated to limit our risks may not be enforceable in the manner we intend

In addition the policies we issue contain conditions requiring the prompt reporting of claims to us or to our claims handling

administrator and our right to decline coverage in the event of violation of that condition While our insurance product exclusions

and limitations reduce the loss
exposure to us and help eliminate known exposures to certain risks it is possible that court or

regulatory authority could nullify or void an exclusion or legislation could be enacted modifying or barring the use of such

endorsements and limitations in way that would adversely effect our loss experience which could have material adverse effect on

our financial condition or results of operations

In the future we may rely on independent agents to write our insurance policies and if we are not able to contract with and

retain independent agents our revenues would be negatively affected

In the future we may begin writing significant number of insurance policies through independent agents unrelated to the

Citizens take-out program We refer to these policies as voluntary policies Although voluntary policies comprise minute percentage

olour business we expect to increase the number of voluntary policies we write as our business expands An inability to sell our

products through independent agents would negatively affect our revenues

Many of our competitors rely on independent agents As result we must compete with other insurers for independent agents

business Our competitors may offer greater variety of insurance products lower premiums for insurance coverage or higher

commissions to theft agents If our products pricing and commissions do not remain competitive we may find it more difficult to

attract business from independent agents to sell our products material reduction in the amount of our products that independent

agents sell could negatively affect our revenues



Our success depends on our ability to accurately price the risks we underwrite

The results of our operations and our financial condition depend on our ability to underwrite and set premium rates accurately

for wide variety of risks Rate adequacy is necessary to generate sufficient premiums to pay losses loss adjustment expenses and

underwriting expenses and to eam profit In order to price our products accurately we must collect and properly analyze

substantial amount of data develop test and apply appropriate rating formulas closely monitor and timely recognize changes in

trends and project both severity and frequency of losses with reasonable accuracy Our ability to undertake these efforts successfully

and as result price our products accurately is subject to number of risks and uncertainties some of which are outside our control

including

the availability of sufficient reliable data and our ability to properly analyze available data

--

the uncertainties that inherently characterize estimates and assumptions

our selection and application of appropriate rating and pricing techniques

changes in legal standards claim settlement practices and restoration costs and

legislatively imposed consumer initiatives

Because we assumed substantially all of our current policies from Citizens our rates are based to certain extent on the rates

charged by Citizens In determining the rates we charge in connection with the policies we assumed from Citizens our rates must be

equal to or less than the rates charged by Citizens during the first full year following the assumption If Citizens increases its rates we

may not automatically increase our rates The risk that Citizens will reduce its rates is exacerbated by the fact that absent certain

circumstances we must continue to provide coverage to the policyholders that we assume from Citizens for period of three years

Also inherent in the process of assuming policies from Citizens there is risk that policy or policies that we have assumed from

Citizens will opt out ofjoining us and will return to Citizens requiring us to refund the uneamed policy premium If this were to occur

for significant number of policies it could impact our financial results as we would have incurred costs in connection with the

assumption of the policies for which we would no longer receive any premium Consequently we could under price risk in connection

with the policies originating from Citizens which would negativcly affect our profit margins With respect to the voluntary policies

that we write we could also overprice risks which could reduce pur sales volume and competitiveness In either event our

profitability could be materially and adversely affected

Current operating resources are necessary to develop future new insurance products

We currently intend to expand our product offerings by underwriting additional insurance products and programs and

marketing them through our independent agent network Expansion of our product offerings will result in increases in expenses due to

additional costs incurred in actuarial rate justifications software and personnel Offering additional insurance products will also

require regulatory approval further increasing our costs and potentially affecting the speed with which we will be able to pursue new
market oppoiunities We cannot assure you that we will be successful bringing new insurance products to our marketplace

Recent investments in our new headquarters may result in additional and unforeseen costs

We have taken and may continue to take actions that may increase our cost structure in the short-term but are intended to

reduce certain portions of our long-term cost structure For example we recently purchased building in Tampa Florida and have

been remodeling the building to suit our specific needs and requirements Following completion of the renovations we will relocate

our corporate headquarters to that building and will consolidate redundant office space

If our long-term cost reduction efforts are ineffective or our estimates of cost savings are inaccurate our profitability could be

negatively impacted Expected savings from relocating facilities can be highly variable and uncertain We may experience business

disruptions and loss of key personnel associated with the office moves and restructuring which in turn may negatively affect our

productivity and profitability Further the costs of implementing this restructuring may be greater than currently anticipated and we

may experience additional costs in connection with remodeling the building ownership of our headquarters building relocating

offices and consolidation of redundant office space due to delays or other unforeseen circumstances

As an insurance holding company we are currently subject to regulation by the state of Florida and ia the future may become

subject to regulation by certain other states or federal regulator

All states regulate insurance holding company systems State statutes and administrative rules generally require each insurance

company in the holding company group to register with the department of insurance in its state of domicile and to furnish information

concerning the operations of the companies within the holding company system which may materially affect the operations

management or financial condition of the insurers within the group As part of its registration each insurance company must identif

material agreements relationships and transactions with affiliates including without limitation loans investments asset transfers

transactions outside of the ordinary course of business certain management service and cost sharing agreements reinsurance

transactions dividends and consolidated tax allocation agreements
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Insurance holding company regulations generally provide that transactions between an insurance company and its affiliates must

be fair and equitable allocated between the parties in accordance with customary accounting practices and
frilly disclosed in the

records of the respective parties Many es of transactions between an insurance company and its affiliates such as transfers of

assets among such affiliated companies certain dividend payments from insurance subsidiaries and certain material transactions

between companies within the system may be subject to prior approval by or prior notice to state regulatory authorities If we are
unable to obtain the requisite prior approval for specific transaction we would be precluded from taking the action which could

adversely affect our operations

We currently operate only in the state of Florida In the future we may become authorized to transact business in other states

and therefore will become subject to the laws and regulatory requirements of those states These regulations may vary from state to

state and states occasionally may have conflicting regulations Since Florida is our state of domicile Florida laws will generally take

precedence Currently the federal governments role in regulating or dictating the policies of insurance companies is limited

However Congress from time to time considers proposals that would increase the role of the federal government in insurance

regulation either in addition to or in lieu of state regulation The impact of any future federal insurance regulation on our insurance

operations is unclear and may adversely iinpact our business or competitive position

Our insurance subsidiary is subject to extensive regulation which may reduce our profitability or limit our growth Moreover
if we fail to comply with these regulations we may be subject to penalties including fines and suspensions which may
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations

The insurance industry is highly regulated and supervised Our insurance subsidiary is subject to the supervision and regulation

of the state in which it is domiciled Florida and the states in which it does business currently only Florida Such supervision and

regulation is primarily desigued to protect our policyholders rather than our shareholders These regulations are generally administered

by department of insurance in each state and relate to among other things

the content and timing of required notices and other policyholder information

the amount of premiums the insurer may write in relation to its surplus

the amount and nature of reinsurance company is required to purchase

participation in guaranty funds and other statutorily-created markets or organizations

business operations and claims practices

approval of policy forms and premium rates

standards of solvency including risk-based capital measurements

licensing of insurers and their products

restrictions on the nature quality and concentration of investments

restrictions on the ability of our insurance subsidiary to pay dividends to us

restrictions on transactions between insurance company subsidiaries and their affiliates

restrictions on the size of risks insurable under single policy

requiring deposits for the benefit of policyholders

requiring certain methods of accounting

periodic examinations of our operations and finances

prescribing the form and content of records of financial condition required to be filed and

requiring reserves as required by statutory accounting mles

The Florida Office of Insurance Regulation OIR and regulators in other jurisdictions where our insurance subsidiary may
become licensed conduct periodic examinations of the affairs of insurance companies and require the filing of annual and other reports

relating to financial condition holding company issues and other matters These regulatory requirements may adversely affect or

inhibit our ability to achieve some or all of our business objectives These regulatory authorities also conduct periodic examinations

into insurers business practices These reviews may reveal deficiencies in our insurance operations or differences between our

interpretations of regulatory requirements and those of the regulators

In addition regulatory authorities have relatively broad discretion to deny or revoke licenses for various reasons including the

violation of regulations In some instances we follow practices based on our interpretations of regulations or practices that we believe

may be generally followed by the industry These practices may tam out to be different from the interpretations of regulatory

authorities If we do not have the requisite licenses and approvals or do not comply with applicable regulatory requirements insurance

regulatory authorities could preclude or temporarily suspend us from carrying on some or all of our activities or otherwise penalize us

This could adversely affect our ability to operate our business
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Finally changes in the level of regulation of the insurance industry or changes in laws or regulations themselves or

interpretations by regulatory authorities could adversely affect our ability to operate our business reduce our profitability and limit our

groh

ITEM lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

ITEM 2-Properties

The Company has lease for office space located in Clearwater Florida This lease commenced in July 2008 and requires the

Company to make monthly rent payments of $12500 which includes $2500 for common area maintenance to an entity owned by

one of the Companys directors The initial term of this agreement is for five years ending on July 15 2013 and the lease may be

extended for up to three additional five-year periods In addition to this primary location the Company leases on month-to-month

basis small office space in building adjacent to the corporate office location This lease requires the Company to pay base rent of

approximately $2200 per month The Company is required to provide 30-day notice to terminate this lease Rental
expense under all

facility leases was $191000 and $181000 during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

On June 2010 the Company purchased property in Tampa Florida for total purchase price of $7.1 million The property

consists of 3.5 acres of land building with gross area of 122000 square feet and three-story parking garage valued at $1.2 million

$5.3 million and $0.6 million respectively This facility will be used by the Company and its subsidiaries all of which will be

headquartered in the new facility The Company expects to complete the relocation of its employees and infrastructure during the

second quarter of 2011 upon completion of various building improvements which are expected to cost the Company between $1.50

million and $1.75 million In addition the Company expects to lease to non-affiliates up to forty-nine percent of the buildings office

space which includes space occupied by existing tenants under lease agreements assumed by the Company at acquisition

ITEM Legal Proceedings

The Company is party to claims and legal actions arising routinely in the ordinary course of our business Although we cannot

predict with certainty the ultimate resolution of the claims and lawsuits asserted against us we do not believe that any currently

pending legal proceedings to which we are party will have material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position results of

operations or cash flows

ITEM 4Reserved

PART II

ITEM 5Marketfor the Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market for Common Stock

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbols MCII Our common stock warrants trade

on the NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol HCIIW The following table represents the high and low sales prices for our

common stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market and the high and low prices for our common stock warrants as

reported by the NASDAQ Global Market for the periods indicated

Common Stock Warrant

Price Price

High Low High Low

Calendar Ouarter 2010

First Quarter $8.26 6.34 2.49 0.52

Second Quarter $7.25 5.31 0.78 0.16

Third Quarter $6.93 5.15 0.70 0.23

Fourth Quarter $9.15 6.27 1.00 0.48

Calendar Quarter 2009

First Quarter $6.00 4.12 0.62 0.15

Second Quarter $5.68 4.43 0.75 0.40

Third Quarter $8.45 5.06 3.00 0.40

Fourth Quarter $8.73 7.52 1.50 0.75
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Holders

As of March 21 2011 the market price for our common stock was $8.11 and there were 32 holders of record of our common
stock As of March 21 2011 the market price for our common stock warrants was $0.83 and there was holder of record of our

warrants

Dividends

The declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors Our ability to pay dividends

depends on many factors including the Companys operating results fmancial condition capital requirements and legal and

regulatory constraints and requirements on the payment of dividends which are discussed in Note 14 Regulatory Requirements and

Restrictions to the audited consolidated fmancial statements and such other factors as our Board of Directors deems relevant On
November 2010 the Companys Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.10 per common share and special

dividend of $0.20 per common share The dividends were paid December 20 2010 to stockholders of record on November 20 2010
On January 26 2011 the Companys Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.10 per common share The dividends

were paid March 18 2011 to stockholders of record on Febmary 18 2011

Under Florida law domestic insurer such as our insurance subsidiary Homeowners Choice Property Casualty Insurance

Company Inc HCPC may not pay any dividend or distribute cash or other property to its stockholder Homeowners Choice Inc

HCI except out of that part of its available and accumulated capital and surplus funds which is derived from realized net operating

profits on its business and net realized capital gains For three-year period beginning March 30 2007 HCPC as newly licensed

Florida insurer was precluded from paying dividends unless approved in advance by the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation

Additionally Florida statutes preclude HCPC from making dividend payments or distributions to HCI without prior approval of the

Florida Office of Insurance Regulation if the dividend or distribution would exceed the larger of the lesser of 10.0% of its

capital surplus or net income not including realized capital gains plus two year carry forward 10.0% of capital surplus with

dividends payable constrained to unassigned funds minus 25% of unrealized capital gains or the lesser of 10.0% of capital

surphjs or net investment income plus three year carry forward with dividends payable constrained to unassigned funds minus

25% of unrealized capital gains

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plan as of December 31 2010 We currently have no equity

compensation plans not approved by stockholders

Number of Securities

Remaining Available

For Future Issuance

Under Equity

Number of Securities Compensation Plans

To be Issued Upon Weighted Average Excluding

Exercise of Exercise Price of Securities Reflected

Plan Category Outstanding Options Outstanding Options in Colomn

Equity Compensation Plans

Approved by Stockholders 830000 2.50 4850000

Performance Graph

As smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 229.1001 of the Exchange Act we are not required to provide the

information under this item and because our stock was not publicly traded prior to July 30 2008 we have elected not to provide the

performance graph which data typically encompasses five-year period

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None
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Issuer Purchases of EQuity Securities

Effective March 18 2009 our Board of Directors authorized plan to repurchase up to $3.0 million inclusive of commissions
of the Companys common shares The repurchase plan allowed the Company to repurchase shares from time to time through

March 19 2010 This repurchase plan was supplemented in December 2009 upon approval by the Board of Directors to extend the

repurchase authority by an additional $3.0 million and continue until the repurchase plan is terminated by the Company or the

maximum number of dollars has been expended The shares may be purchased for cash in open market purchases block transactions

and privately negotiated transactions in accordance with applicable federal securities laws The share repurchase plan may be

modified suspended terminated or extended by the Company any time without prior notice During the quarter ended December 31
2010 the Company repurchased and retired total of 95270 shares at an average price of $7.83 per share and total cost inclusive of

fees and commissions of $751342 or $7.89 per share under this authorized repurchase program The following table provides

information with respect to shares repurchased during the quarter ended December 31 2010

Maximum
Total Number Number or

of Shares Approximate
Total Average Purchased as Dollar Value

Number Price Paid Part of Publicly of Shares that

Of Shares Per Announced Plan May Yet be

Repurchased Share or Program Purchased

Period

October 1-31 2010 22277 6.85 22277 $1290000

November 1-30 2010 38895 8.12 38895 972000
December 1-31 2010 34098 8.14 34098 693000

Total 95270 7.83 95270

ITEM 6Selected Financial Data

As smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 229.1 0f1 of the Exchange Act we are not required to provide the

information under this item and we have elected to exclude this information as our operating history does not cover the requisite five-

year period

ITEM 7Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included

elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K Unless the context requires otherwise as used in this Form 10-K the terms HCI
we us our the Company our company and similar references refer to Homeowners Choice Inc and its subsidiaries

Forward-Looking Statements

In addition to historical information this annual report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements as defined under

federal securities laws Such statements involve risks and uncertainties such as statements about our plans objectives

expectations assumptions or future events These statements involve estimates assumptions known and unknown risks

uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from any future results performances or

achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements Among the important factors that could cause actual results

to differ materially from those indicated by such forward-looking statements include but are not limited to the effect of

governmental regulation changes in insurance regulations the frequency and extent of claims uncertainties inherent in reserve

estimates catastrophic events change in the demand for pricing of availability or collectabiity of reinsurance restrictions on

our ability to change premium rates increased rate pressure on premiums changing rates of inflation and other risks and

uncertainties and other factors listed under Item 1A Risk Factors and elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K and in

-- our other Securities and Exchange Commission filings
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Recent Developments

On February 2011 we filed Amendment No on Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission under which we

offered for sale minimum of 1200000 shares up to maximum of 1500000 shares of our 7% Series Cumulative Redeemable

Preferred Stock Series Preferred On March 25 2011 the offering was completed with total of 1247700 shares of Series

Preferred being issued by the Company for gross proceeds of approximately $12.5 million before deducting offering expenses which

are expected to total approximately $1.2 million including placement agent fees and expenses The Company intends to use the net

proceeds from this offering of approximately $11.3 million for general corporate purposes Dividends on the Series Preferred will

be cumulative from the date of original issue and will accrue on the last day of each month at an annual rate of 7% of the $10.00

liquidation preference per share Each share of the Series Preferred will be convertible at the holders option at any time initially

into one share of our common stock based upon an initial conversion price of $10.00 per
share The Company may terminate this

conversion right on or after March 31 2014 if for at least twenty trading days within any period of thirty consecutive trading days

the market price of our common stock exceeds the conversion price of the Series Preferred by more than 20% and our common

stock is then traded on the New York Stock Exchange the NASDAQ Global Select Market the NASDAQ Global Market the

NASDAQ Capital Market or the NYSE Amex Shares of the Series Preferred will have no voting rights except under limited

circumstances

OVERVIEW

General

Homeowners Choice Inc is property and casualty insurance holding company incorporated in Florida in 2006 Through our

subsidiaries we provide property and casualty homeowners insurance condominium-owners insurance and tenants insurance to

individuals owning property in Florida We offer these insurance products at competitive rates while pursuing profitability using

selective underwriting criteria Our principal revenues are earned premiums which are reported net of reinsurance costs and

investment income We cede substantial portion of our eamed premiums to reinsurers to mitigate risks primarily associated with

hurricanes and other catastrophic events Our principal expenses are claims from policyholders policy acquisition costs and other

underwriting expenses As of December 31 2010 we had total assets of $140.9 million and stockholders equity of $46.6 million Our

net income was approximately $5.4 million for the year ended December 31 2010 Our book value per share increased to $7.51 as of

December 31 2010 compared to $7.03 as of December 31 2009

We began operations in June of 2007 by participating in take-out program through which we assumed insurance policies

held by Citizens Property Insurance Corpóration Citizens Florida state-supported insurer The take-out program is legislatively

mandated program designed to reduce the states risk exposure by encouraging private companies to assume policies from Citizens

Policies were assumed in eight separate assumption transactions which took place in July and November 2007 February June

October and December 2008 December 2009 and December 2010 Substantially all of our premium revenue since inception comes

from these assumptions We currently have approximately 65000 policies in force Of those policies assumed approximately 86% are

homeowners insurance policies and the remaining 14% are combination of policies written for condominium-owners and tenants

Our current policies in force represent approximately $135 million in annualized premiums

Citizens requires us to offer renewals on the policies we acquire for period of three
years subsequent to the initial expiration of

the assumed policies The policyholders have the option to renew with us or they may ask theft agent to place their coverage with

another insurance company With respect to the assumptions through December 31 2009 policyholders could also elect to return to

Citizens i.e opt out prior to the policy renewal date With respect to the December 31 2010 assumption the opt-out provision was

limited to thirty days from the assumption date We strive to retain these policies by offering competitive rates to our policyholders

We face various challenges to implementing our operating and growth strategies Since we write policies that cover Florida

homeowners condominium owners and tenants we cover losses that may arise from among other things catastrophes which could

have significant effect on our business results of operations and financial condition To mitigate our risk of such losses we cede

portion of our exposure to other entities under catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance treaties Even without catastrophic events we

may incur losses and loss adjustment expenses that deviate substantially from our estimates and that may exceed our reserves in

which case our net income and capital would decrease Our operating and growth strategies may also be impacted by regulation and

supervision of our business by the State of Florida which must approve our policy forms and premium rates as well as monitor our

insurance subsidiarys ability to meet all requirements for regulatory compliance Additionally we compete with large well-

established insurance companies as well as other specialty insurers that in most cases possess greater financial resources larger

agency networks and greater name recognition
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Effective December 2010 Homeowners Choice Property Casualty Insurance Company Inc assumed an additional 8031

homeowners policies from Citizens

On January 26 2011 the Companys Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.10 per common share The

dividends were paid March 18 2011 to stockholders of record on February 18 2011



On February 22 2011 we announced our intention to enter the Alabama homeowners insurance market We expect to satisfy

Alabama regulatory requirements and begin operations in Alabama by the end of 2011

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table summarizes our results of operations for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 dollars in

thousands except per share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Operating Revenue

Grosspremiums earned $119757 110011

Premiums ceded 57322 44674

Net premiums earned 62435 65337
Net investment income 1962 1793

Realized investment gains 2003
Other Income 2215 1248

Total operating revenue 68615 68378

Operating Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 37667 35230

Policy acquisition and other underwriting expenses 14878 9611

Other operating expenses 7484 5788

Total operating expenses 60029 50629

Income before income taxes 8586 17749

Income taxes 3164 6839

Net income 5422 10910

Ratios to Net Premiums Earned

Loss Ratio 60.33% 53.92%

Expense Ratio 35.82% 23.57%

Combined Ratio 96.15% 77.49%

Ratios to Gross Premiums Earned

Loss Ratio 1.45% 32.02%

Expense Ratio 18.67% 14.00%

Combined Ratio 50.12% 46.02%

Per Share Data

Basic earnings per share 0.88 1.62

Diluted earnings per share 0.81 1.52

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31 2010 to the Year Ended December 31 2009

VVV Our results of operations for the year ended December 31 2010 reflect net income of $5.4 million or $0.81 earnings per diluted

share compared to net income of $10.9 million or $1.52 per diluted share for the year ended December 31 2009

Revenue

Gross Premiums Earned for the year ended December 31 2010 were $119.8 million and reflect the revenue from policies

assumed from Citizens in connection with the eight separate assumption transactions through December 2010 and the revenue on the

renewal of these policies Gross premiums earned for the
year

ended December 31 2009 were $110.0 million and reflect the revenue

from policies assumed from Citizens in connection with the seven separate assumption transactions through December 2009 and the

revenue on the renewal of these policies
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Premiums Ceded for the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were $57.3 million and $44.7 million respectively Our

premiums ceded represent amounts paid to reinsurers to cover losses from catastrophes that exceed the thresholds defmed by our

catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance treaties Our reinsurance rates are based primarily on policy exposures reflected in gross

premiums eamed Thus the $12.6 million increase in premiums ceded during 2010 is primarily due to the increase in our policy

exposure base Premiums ceded were 47.9% and 40.6% of gross premiums eamed during the
years

ended December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively

Net Premiums Earned for the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were $62.4 million and $65.3 million respectively and

reflect the
gross premiums eamed less reinsurance costs as described above Net premiums eamed decreased by $2.9 million in 2010

as compared to 2009 as result of the $9.7 million increase in gross premiums eamed offset by the increase of $12.6 million in

premiums ceded

Net Premiums Written during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 totaled $59.0 million and $66.6 million

respectively Net premiums written represent the premiums charged on policies issued during fiscal period less reinsurance costs

The following is reconciliation of our total Net Premiums Written to Net Premiums Eamed for the years ended December 31

2010 and 2009 in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Net Premiums Written 58960 66627

Decrease increase in Uneamed Premiums 3475 1290

Net Premiums Eamed 62435 65337

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was $2.0 million and $1.8 million respectively There

were no other than temporary impairments recorded during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 The $0.2 million increase in

total investment income is primarily due to interest income received from our available-for-sale investments which were added to our

investment portfolio beginning in the second quarter of 2009

Realized Investment Gains for the year ended December 31 2010 of $2.0 million reflects the net gain realized from sales of

securities during the year We had no significant investment gains in the year ended December 31 2009

Other Income for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 of $2.2 million and $1.2 million respectively primarily reflects

the policy fee income we earn with respect to our issuance of renewal policies

Expenses

Our Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses amounted to $37.7 million and $35.2 million respectively during the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009

Our losses and loss adjustment expense reserves Reserves which are more fully described below under Critical Accounting

Policies and Estimates are specific to homeowners insurance which is our only line of business These Reserves include both case

reserves on reported claims and our reserves for incurred but not reported IBNR losses At each period-end date the balance of

our Reserves is based on our best estimate of the ultimate cost of each claim for those known cases and the IBNR loss reserves are

estimated based primarily on our historical experience Our Reserves increased from $19.2 million at December 31 2009 to $22.1

million at December 31 2010 The $2.9 million increase in our Reserves during 2010 is comprised of $14.2 million in new reserves

specific to the year ended December 31 2010 offset by reductions of $9.9 million and $1.4 million in our Reserves for 2009 and 2008

respectively The $14.2 million in Reserves established for 2010 claims is due to the increase in our policy exposure which resulted in

an increase in the amount of reported losses in 2010 The decrease of $11.3 million specific to our 2009 and 2008 accident-year

reserves is due to favorable development arising from lower than expected loss development during 2010 relative to expectations used

to establish our Reserve estimates at the end of 2009 Factors that are attributable to this favorable development may include lower

severity of claims than the severity of claims considered in establishing our Reserves and actual case development may be more

favorable than originally anticipated

Policy Acquisition and Other Underwriting Expenses for the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 of $14.9 million and

$9.6 million respectively primarily reflect the amortization of deferred acquisition costs commissions payable to agents for

production and renewal of policies and premium taxes and policy fees The $5.3 million increase in 2010 is primarily attributable to

an increase in our commissions premium taxes and other underwriting expenses directly attributable to policy renewals and an

increase in our payroll and other underwriting expenses required to manage our policies in force
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Other Operating Expenses for the
years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were $7.5 million and $5.8 million respectively

Such expenses include administrative compensation and related benefits corporate insurance professional fees office lease and
related expenses information system expense and other general and administrative costs The $1.7 million increase is primarily
attributable to an increase for administrative compensation and related benefits As of December 31 2010 we had 76 employees
compared to 58 employees as of December 31 2009

Income Taxes for the
years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were $3.2 million and $6.8 million respectively for state and

federal income taxes resulting in an effective tax rate of 36.9% for 2010 and 38.5% for 2009

Ratios

The loss ratio applicable to the year ended December 31 2010 loss and loss adjustment expenses related to net premiums
eamed was 60.3% compared to 53.9% for the

year ended December 31 2009 Our loss ratio was negatively impacted by significant
increase in our reinsurance costs during 2010 which reduced our net premiums eamed

The expense ratio applicable to the year ended December 31 2010 policy acquisition and other
underwriting expenses related

to net premiums eamed plus compensation employee benefits and other operating expenses was 35.8% compared to 23.6% for the

year ended December 31 2009 We have experienced an increase in our expense ratio due to increases in our premium taxes payroll
and other underwriting expenses required to manage our policies in force as we have renewed more policies in 2010 than in 2009 see
Policy Acquisition and Other Underwriting Expenses above In addition our expense ratio was negatively impacted by significant
increase in our reinsurance costs during 2010 which reduced our net premiums eamed

The combined loss and
expense ratio total of all

expenses related to net premiums eamed is the key measure of underwriting
performance traditionally used in the property and casualty industry combined ratio under 100% generally reflects profitable
underwriting results combined ratio over 100% generally reflects unprofitable underwriting results Our combined ratio for the

year
ended December 31 2010 was 96.2% compared to 77.5% for the

year ended December 31 2009

Due to the impact our reinsurance costs have on net premiums eamed from period to period our management believes the
combined loss and

expense ratio measured to gross premiums Øariied is more relevant in assessing overall performance The combined
loss and expense ratio to

gross premiums eamed for the
year ended December 31 2010 was 50.1% compared to 46% for the year

ended December 31 2009

Seasonality of Our Business

We expect to experience increases in our lostas and loss adjustment expenses during the period from June through
November 30 each year as this is typically the period during which hurricanes and other tropical storms may occur As result of such
seasonal varialions in our reported losses we anticipate our operating profits during the period from June through November 30
each

year may be negatively impacted by an increase in losses and loss adjustment expenses

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since inception our liquidity requirements have been met through issuance of our common stock and funds from operations
We expect our ftiture liquidity requirements will be met by finds from operations primarily the cash received by our insurance

subsidiary from premiums written and investment income In addition we raised approximately $11.3 million in net proceeds from
our preferred stock offering which was completed on March 25 2011 We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering primarily
for general corporate purposes which may include contribution of capital to our insurance

subsidiary investments and the pursuit of

growth opportunities

Our insurance subsidiary requires liquidity and adequate capital to meet ongoing obligations to policyholders and claimants and
to find operating expenses In addition we attempt to maintain adequate levels of liquidity and surplus to manage any differences
between the duration of our liabilities and invested assets In the insurance industry cash collected for premiums from policies written
is invested interest and dividends are earned thereon and loss and loss adjustment expenses are paid out over period of years This
period of time varies by the circumstances surrounding each claim substantial portion of our losses and loss

expenses are
frilly

settled and paid within 90 days of the claim receipt date Additional cash outflow occurs through payments of underwriting costs such

as commissions taxes payroll and general overhead expenses

We believe that we maintain sufficient liquidity to pay our insurance
subsidiarys claims and expenses as well as satisfS

commitments in the event of unforeseen events such as reinsurer insolvencies inadequate premium rates or reserve deficiencies We
maintain comprehensive reinsurance program at levels management considers adequate to diversif risk and safeguard our financial

position
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In the future we anticipate our primary use of funds will be to pay claims and operating expenses In addition we expect to

spend between $1.5 million to $1.75 million on enhancements to our new building

Inflation and Changing Prices

During our limited operating history we have not experienced any material impact on revenues or our results of operations due

to inflation or changing prices However our premiums are established before we know the amount of our losses and the related

settlement expenses and before we know the extent to which inflation may impact our expenses Consequently we attempt to

anticipate the future impact of inflation when establishing our rates yet our ability to establish and increase rates is subject to

regulatory approval and may be further constrained by competitive pressures In the event we experience prolonged periods of

inflation leading to material increases in our expenses without corresponding increase in our premium rates such an event could

have material adverse effect on our future results of operations

Cash Flows

Our cash flows from operating investing and financing activities for the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 are

summarized below

Cash Flows for the Year ended December 31 2010

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31 2010 was approximately $16.1 million which

resulted primarily from the $19.5 million of premiums collected from Citizens offset by $10.6 million from reinsurance premiums

prepaid in 2010 and $7.2 million cash received from net written premiums less cash disbursed for operating expenses and losses and

loss adjustment expenses Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $0.2 million of which $7.3 million was contributed

from investment sales net of investment purchases offset by $7.5 million used to purchase property and equipment Net cash used in

financing activities totaled $4.5 million which was primarily due to $3.6 million used to repurchase our shares and $1.9 million used

to pay dividends offset by approximately $1.0 million from proceeds and tax benefits related to stock option exercises

Cash Flows for the Year ended December 31 2009

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31 2009 was approximately $13.5 million which resulted

primarily from an increase of $19.5 million in uncollected premiums due from Citizens at December 31 2009 from the December

2009 assumption transaction partially offset by cash received from net written premiums less cash disbursed for operating expenses

and losses and loss adjustment expenses Net cash used in investing activities of $21.0 million was primarily due to the $21.2 million

net amount used to purchase various fixed maturity secuiities and short-term investments Additionally we used $314000 to purchase

property and equipment These amounts were offset by our receipt of $450000 upon repayment of note receivable Net cash used in

financing activities totaled $3.1 million which was primarily due to $3.2 million used to repurchase our shares and warrants offset by

$49000 from the exercise of conunon stock options

Investments

The main objective of our investment policy is to maximize our after-tax investment income with minimum of risk given the

current financial market Our excess cash is invested primarily in money market accounts certificates of deposit i.e CDs maturing in

less than thirteen months time deposits i.e CDs maturing in more than twelve months and fixed maturity and equity security

available-for-sale investments

At December 31 2010 we have $29.4 million of available-for-sale investments which are carried at fair value Changes in the

general interest rate environment affect the returns available on new fixed maturity investments While rising interest rate

environment enhances the retums available on new investments it reduces the market value of existing fixed maturity investments and

thus the availability of gains on disposition decline in interest rates reduces the retums available on new fixed maturity investments

but increases the market value of existing fixed maturity investments creating the opportunity for realized investment gains on

disposition

With the exception of large national banks it is our current policy not to maintain cash deposits of more than an aggregate of

$5.5 million in any one bank at any time From time to time we may have in excess of $5.5 million of cash designated for investment

and on deposit at single national brokerage firm In the future we may alter our investment policy to include or increase investments

in federal state and municipal obligations preferred and common equity securities and real estate mortgages as permitted by

applicable law including insurance regulations
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As of December 31 2010 we had no off-balance sheet arrangements as defmed in Item 303a4 of Regulation S-K

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

As smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 229.1001 of the Exchange Act we are not required to provide the

information under this item

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

We have prepared our consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America The preparation of these consolidated Imancial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments to

develop amounts reflected and disclosed in our financial statements Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant

change in the near term are related to our losses and loss adjustment expenses which include amounts estimated for claims incurred

but not yet reported We base our estimates on various assumptions and actuarial data that we believe to be reasonable under the

circumstances Actual results may differ materially from these estimates

We believe our accounting policies specific to premium revenue recognition losses and loss adjustment expenses reinsurance
deferred policy acquisition costs deferred tax assets and liabilities and stock-based compensation expense involve our most

significant judgments and estimates material to our consolidated financial statements

Premium Revenue Premium revenue is eamed on daily pro-rata basis over the term of the policies Uneamed premiums

represent the portion of the premium related to the unexpired policy term

Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses We establish reserves for the estimated total unpaid costs of losses

including loss adjustment expenses LAE Unless otherwise specified below the term loss reserves shall encompass reserves for

both losses and LAE Loss reserves reflect managements best estimate of the total cost ofi claims that have been incurred but not

yet paid and ii claims that have been incurred but not yet reported IBNR Loss reserves established by us are not an exact

calculation of our liability Rather loss reserves represent managements best estimate of our companys liability based on application
of actuarial techniques and other projection methodology and taking into consideration other facts and circumstances known at the

balance sheet date The process of establishing loss reserves is complex and necessarily imprecise as it involves using judgment that

is affected by many variables such as past loss experience current claim trends and the prevailing social economic and legal

environments The impact of both internal and extemal variables on ultimate loss and LAE costs is difficult to estimate Our exposure
is impacted by both the risk characteristics of the physical locations where we write policies such as hurricane and tropical storm-

related risks as well as risks associated with varying social judicial and legislative characteristics in Florida the state in which we
operate In determining loss reserves we give careful consideration to all available data and actuarial analyses and this

process
involves significant judgment

The liability for losses and LAE represents estimates of the ultimate unpaid cost of all losses incurred including losses for

claims that have not yet been reported to our insurance company The amount of loss reserves for reported claims is based primarily

upon case-by-case evaluation of the kind of risk involved knowledge of the circumstances surrounding each claim and the insurance

policy provisions relating to the type of loss The amounts of loss reserves for unreported claims and LAE are detennined using
historical homeowners insurance information as adjusted to current conditions Inflation is ordinarily implicitly provided for in the

reserving function through analysis of costs trends and reviews of historical reserving results over multiple years

Reserves are closely monitored and are recalculated periodically using the most recent information on reported claims and

variety of actuarial techniques Specifically claims management personnel complete weekly and ongoing reviews of existing reserves
new claims changes to existing case reserves and paid losses with respect to the current and prior year In addition claims

committee of our board of directors meets periodically to review any major claims As we develop historical data regarding paid and

incurred losses we use this data to develop expected ultimate loss and loss adjustment expense ratios We then apply these expected
loss and loss adjustment expense ratios to eamed premium to derive reserve level for our homeowners line of business In

connection with the determination of these reserves we will also consider other specific factors such as recent weather-related losses
trends in historical paid losses and legal and judicial trends regarding liability Most of our business was assumed from Citizens

Therefore we use the loss ratio method among other methods to project an ultimate loss expectation and then the related loss history

must be regularly evaluated and loss expectations updated with the possibility of variability from the initial estimate of ultimate

losses
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Finally we employ the average outstanding and open claims method We segregate our claims according to when we assumed

them from Citizens and conduct detailed review in order to estimate average future development of open claims and average

projected loss on IBNR claims We combine this estimate with our open claims in order to derive an estimate of expected unreported

losses Paid losses are added to this estimate in order to derive an estimate of ultimate losses This method is based on the assumption

that fUture IBNR claims and the average severity of open claims and IBNR claims can be reasonably estimated from the experience

available
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When claim is reported to us our claims personnel establish case reserve for the estimated amount of the ultimate

payment This estimate reflects an infonned judgment based upon general insurance reserving practices and on the experience and

knowledge of the estimator The individual estimating the reserve considers the nature and value of the specific claim the severity of

injury or damage location and the policy provisions relating to the type of loss Case reserves are adjusted by us as more information

becomes available It is our policy to settle each claim as expeditiously as possible

We maintain IBNR reserves to provide for already incurred claims that have not yet been reported and developments on

reported claims The IBNR reserve is determined by estimating our insurance companys ultimate net liability for both reported and

IBNR claims and then subtracting the case reserves and payments made to date for reported claims

Loss Reserve Estimation Methods We apply the following general methods in projecting loss and LAE reserves

Reported loss development

Paid loss development

Loss ratio method and

Average outstanding and open claims

The results of the reserve calculations using these methods were similar and therefore we relied on an average
of the four

methods

Description of Ultimate Loss Estimation Methods The reported loss development method relies on the assumption that at any

given state of maturity ultimate losses can be predicted by multiplying cumulative reported losses paid losses plus case reserves by

cumulative development factor The validity of the results of this method depends on the stability of claim reporting and settlement

rates as well as the consistency of case reserve levels Case reserves do not have to be adequately stated for this method to be

effective they only need to have fairly consistent level of adequacy at all stages of maturity Because of our limited loss experience

we select loss development factors based on industry data found in current A.M Bests Aggregates and Averages Property/Casualty

United States Canada We assume that our loss development patterns will be reasonably consistent with industry averages and

use the selected factors to project the ultimate losses

The paid loss development method is mechanically identical to the reported loss development method described above The paid

method does not rely on case reserves or claim reporting pattems in making projections

The validity of the results from using loss development approach can be affected by many conditions such as internal claim

department processing changes shift between single and multiple claim payments legal changes or variations in our mix of

business from year to year Also since the percentage of losses paid for immature years
is often low development factors are volatile

small variation in the number of claims paid can have leveraging effect that can lead to significant changes in estimated ultimate

losses Therefore ultimate values for immature accident years are often based on alternative estimation techniques

The loss ratio method used by us relies on the assumption that remaining unreported losses are function of the total expected

losses rather than function of currently reported losses The expected loss ratio is multiplied by earned premium to produce ultimate

losses Paid losses are then subtracted from this estimate to produce expected unreported losses

The loss ratio method is most useful as an altemative to other models for immature accident years For these immature years the

amounts reported or paid may be small and unstable and therefore not predictive of future development Therefore future

development is assumed to follow an expected pattern that is supported by more stable historical data or by emerging trends This

method is also useful when changing reporting patterns or payment patterns distort the historical development of losses

While the property and casualty industry has incurred substantial aggregate losses from claims related to asbestos-related

illnesses enviroumental rernediation product and mold and other uncertain or environmental exposures we have not experienced

significant losses from these types of claims



Currently our estimated ultimate liability is calculated monthly using these principles and procedures applicable to the lines of

11 business written However because the establishment of loss reserves is an inherently uncertain process we cannot be certain that

ultimate losses will not exceed the established loss reserves and have material adverse effect on our results of operations and

fmancial condition Changes in estimates or differences between estimates and amounts ultimately paid are reflected in the operating
results of the period during which such adjustments are made

Our reported results financial position and liquidity would be affected by likely changes in key assumptions that determine our

net loss reserves Management does not believe that any reasonably likely changes in the frequency of claims would affect our loss

reserves However management believes that reasonably likely increase or decrease in the severity of claims could impact our net
loss reserves The table below summarizes the effect on net loss reserves and equity in the event of reasonably likely changes in the

severity of claims considered in establishing loss and loss adjustment expense reserves The
range

of reasonably likely changes in the

severity of our claims was established based on review of changes in accident
year development and applied to loss reserves as

whole The selected
range of changes does not indicate what could be the potential best or worst case or likely scenarios

Year Ended December 31 2010

Percentage

change in

Change in Reserves Reserves
equity net of tax

-10.0% 19931 3.00%

-7.5% 20485 2.25%

-5.0% 21039 1.50%

-2.5% 21592 0.75%

Base 22146
2.5% 22700 -0.75%

5.0% 23253 -1.50%

7.5% 23807 -2.25%

10.0% 24361 -3.00%

Reinsurance In the normal course of business we seek to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes or other events that

cause unfavorable underwriting results by reinsuring certain levels of risk in various areas of
exposure

with other insurance enterprises
or reinsurers Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in manner consistent with the reinsured policy Reinsurance

premiums and reserves related to reinsured business are accounted for on basis consistent with those used in accounting for the

original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts Premiums ceded to other companies have been reported as

reduction of premium income

Defr rred policy acquisition costs Deferred policy acquisition costs DAC primarily represent commissions paid to Citizens

or outside agents at the time of collection of the policy premium salaries and premium taxes and are amortized over the life of the

related policy in relation to the amount of
gross premiums eamed The method followed in computing DAC limits the amount of such

deferred costs to theft estimated realizable value which gives effect to the gross premium eamed related investment income unpaid
losses and LAE and certain other costs expected to be incurred as the premium is eamed

DAC is reviewed to determine if it is recoverable from ftiture income including investment income If such costs are

determined to be unrecoverable they are expensed at the time of determination The amount of DAC considered recoverable could be

reduced in the near term if the estimates of total revenues discussed above are reduced or permanently impaired as result of the

disposition of line of business The amount of amortization of DAC could be revised in the near term if any of the estimates

discussed above are revised

Income Taxes We account for income taxes in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 740

Income Taxes ASC 740 ASC 740 results in two components of income tax expense current and deferred Current income tax

expense reflects taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable

income or excess of deductions over revenues We determine deferred income taxes using the liability or balance sheet method
Under this method the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax bases

of assets and liabilities and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur Valuation

allowances are provided against assets that are not likely to be realized We have elected to classif interest and penalties as income

tax expense as permitted by current accounting standards
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Stock-Based Compensation We account for our stock option plan under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC Topic

718 Compensation Stock Compensation ASC 718 which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation for all

stock-based awards made to employees and directors including stock options and restricted stock issuances based on estimated fair

values Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718 we recognize stock-based compensation in the consolidated

statements of earnings on straight-line basis over the vesting period We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model which requires

the following variables for input to calculate the fair value of each stock award on the option grant date expected volatility of our

stock price the risk-free interest rate expected term of each award expected dividends and an expected forfeiture rate

ITEM 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 229.1001 of the Exchange Act we are not required to provide the

information under this item
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Homeowners Choice Inc

learwater Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Homeowners Choice Inc and Subsidiaries the Company
as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related consolidated statements of earnings stockholders equity and cash flows for the

years then ended These fmancial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

linancial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of the Company at December 31 2010 and 2009 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended

in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

is Hacker Johnson Smith PA

HACKER JOHNSON SMITH PA

Tampa Florida

March25 2011
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HOMEOWNERS CHOICE INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Dollars in thousands except share amounts

At December 31 At December 31
2010 2009

Assets

Investments

Fixed maturity securities held-to-maturity at amortized cost fair value $4250 4049
Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale at fair value amortized cost $28456 and

$19763 28564 19266
Equity securities available-for-sale at fair value 884

Time deposits 14033 13507
Short-term investments

11521

Total investments
43481 48343

Cash and cash equivalents 54849 43453
Accrued interest and dividends receivable 80 176

Premiums receivable 5822 4899
Assumed reinsurance balances receivable 26 19525
Prepaid reinsurance premiums 17787 7205
Deferred policy acquisition costs 9407 10496
Property and equipment net 7755 399
Deferred income taxes 584 2438
Other assets

1057 958

Total assets
140948 137892

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 22146 19178
Unearned premiums 65034 68509
Advancepremiums 1114 713
Accrued

expenses 2385 2906
Income taxes payable 310 167

Other liabilities 3330 1041

Total liabilities 94319 92514

Commitments and contingencies Notes 13 and 14
Stockholders equity

Preferred stock no par value 20000000 shares authorized no shares issued or

outstanding

Common stock no par value 40000000 shares authorized 6205396 and 6456635
shares issued and outstanding in 2010 and 2009

Additional paid-in capital 18606 21164
Retained earnings 28065 24520
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 42 306
Total stockholders equity 46629 45378

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 140948 137892

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HOMEOWNERS CHOICE INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Dollars in thonsands except per share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Revenue

Gross premiums earned $119757 110011

Premiums ceded 57322 44674

Net premiums earned 62435 65337

Net investment income 1962 1793

Realized investment gains 2003
Other 2215 1248

Total revenue 68615 68378

Expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 37667 35230

Policy acquisition and other underwriting expenses 14878 9611

Other operating expenses 7484 5788

Total expenses 60029 50629

Income before income taxes 8586 17749

Income taxes 3164 6839

Net income 5422 10910

Basic earnings per share 0.88 1.62

Diluted earnings per share 0.81 1.52

Dividends
per

share 0.30

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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HOMEOWNERS CHOICE INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

For the Years Ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Dollars in thousands except share amounts

Common stock Additional

Paid-In

Shares Amount Capital

Accumulated

Other

Retained Comprehensive

Earnings Loss Total

Balance at December31 2008 6892668 23783 13610 37393

Net income
10910 10910

Change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale

securities net of income tax benefit 306 306
Comprehensive income

10604
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised

Repurchases and retirement of common stock 452033 3111 3111
Repurchases of common stock warrants 40 40
Exercise of stock options 16000 40 40

Stock-based compensation 483 483

Balance at December31 2009 21164 24520 306 45378

Net income 5422 5422
Change in unrealized loss on available-for-sale

securities net of income taxes 264 264

Comprehensive income 5686
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised 301 301

Repurchases and retirement of common stock 3596 3596
Exercise of stock options 650 650

Cash dividends paid 1877 1877
Stock-based compensation

6456635

511239

260000

6205396Balance at December 31 2010

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

87

18606 28065 42

87

46629
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HOMEOWNERS CHOICE INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Dollars in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 5422 10910

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by used in operating activities

Stock-based compensation 87 483

Amortization of discounts on investments in fixed maturity securities 28 91
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 108

Depreciation and amortization 178 74

Deferred income taxes 1690 1316

Realized gains on sales of invettments 2003
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Premiums receivable 923 122

Assumed reinsurance balances receivable 19499 19525
Advance premiums 401

Prepaid reinsurance premiums 10582 83
Reinsurance balances receivable 157

-- Accrued interest and dividends receivable 113
-- Other assets 99 546

Assuthed reinsurance balances payable 6136
Deferred policy acquisition costs 1089 4204
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 2968 4415

Unearned premiums 3475 1290

Income taxes payable 143 4537
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1768 2886

Net cash provided by used in operating activities 16131 13474

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment net 7534 314
Purchase of fixed maturity securities 31921 24584
Purchase of equity securities 5384
Proceeds from sales of fixed maturity securities 29116 863

Proceeds from sales of equity securities 4515

Repayment of note receivable 450

Increase in time deposits net 526 5482
Decrease in short-term investments net 11521 8036

Net cash used in investing activities 213 21031

--

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the exercise of common stock options 650 40

Cash dividends paid 1877
Repurchases of common stock 3596 3111
Repurchases of common stock warrants 40
Excess tax benefit from common stock options exercised 301

Net cash used in financing activities 4522 3102

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 11396 37607
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 43453 81060

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 54849 43453

-- -- Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for income taxes 790 10050

Cash paid for interest

Non-cash investing activity

Unrealized gainlloss on investments available for sale net of tax 264 306

Transfer of securities held-to-maturity to securities available-for-sale 1900

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note Snmmary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Business The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Homeowners Choice
Inc and its wholly-owned subsidiaries collectively the Company All significant intercompany balances and transactions have

been eliminated in consolidation

Homeowners Choice Inc is an insurance holding company which through its subsidiaries and contractual relationships with

independent agents controls substantially all aspects of the insurance underwriting distribution and claims process The Company is

authorized to underwrite homeowners property and casualty insurance in the state of Florida through its wholly-owned subsidiary
Homeowners Choice Property Casualty Insurance Company Inc HCPC

Homeowners Choice Managers Inc HCM wholly-owned subsidiary acts as HCPCs exclusive managing general agent in

the state of Florida HCM currently provides underwriting policy administration marketing accounting and fmancial services to

HCPC and participates in the negotiation of reinsurance contracts Southern Administration Inc wholly-owned subsidiary

provides policy administration services Claddaugh Casualty Insurance Company Ltd Claddaugh wholly-owned subsidiary

provides reinsurance coverage to HCPC HCPCI Holdings LLC wholly-owned subsidiary of HCPC owns and manages the

Companys real estate

.1 Nearly all of the Companys customers have been obtained through participation in takeout program with Citizens Property
Insurance Corporation Citizens Florida state supported insurer The customers were obtained in eight separate assumption

transactions completed in July and November 2007 February June October and December 2008 December 2009 and December

2010 The Company is required to offer renewals on the policies acquired for period of three years subsequent to the initial

expiration of the assumed policies During the first ifill year after assumption such renewals are required to have rates that are

equivalent to or less than the rates charged by Citizens

Use of Estimates The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results may differ materially from these estimates

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term are related to loss and loss adjusiment

expenses

Cash and Cash Equivalents The Company considers all short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of less

than three months to be cash and cash equivalents At December 31 2010 and 2009 cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on

deposit with financial institutions and securities brokerage firms

Time Deposits Time deposits consist of certificates of deposit with initial maturities ranging from one to five
years

Short-term Investments Short-term investments consist of certificates of deposit with maturities less than one year

Investments Securities may be classified as either trading held to maturity or available for sale Held-to-maturity securities are

reported at amortized cost The Companys available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value Temporary changes in the fair value

of available-for-sale securities are excluded from operations and reported in stockholders equity as component of accumulated other

comprehensive loss net of deferred income taxes Realized investment gains and losses are recorded on the trade date and are

determined using the specific identification method Investment income is recognized as eamed and discounts or premiums arising

from the purchase of securities are recognized in investment income using the interest method over the estimated remaining term of

the security

.- As part of the Companys investment
strategy put and call options are purchased or sold on various equity securities the

Company is willing to buy or sell The premiums received are recorded as liability until such time as the options are exercised or

expire Upon exercise the value of the premium will adjust the basis of the underlying security bought or sold Options that expire are

recorded as income in the period they expire With respect to these written option contracts the Company includes the net gain or loss

in the amount reported for realized investments gains in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings In accordance with the Financial

Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 815 Derivatives and Hedging in the

event the Company has open option contracts at the end of the reporting period these options are marked to fair value through

earnings There were no option contracts outstanding at December 31 2010 or 2009

continued
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Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

The Company reviews all securities for other-than-temporary impairment OTTI at least on quarterly basis and more

frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such review When the fair value of any investment is lower than its cost an

assessment is made to determine whether the decline is temporary or other-than-temporary If the decline is determined to be other-

than-temporary the investment is written down to fair value and an impairment charge is recognized in eamings in the period in which

the Company makes such determination For debt security that the Company does not intend to sell and it is not more likely than not

that the Company will be required tO sell before
recovery of its amortized cost only the credit loss component of the impairment is

recognized in eamings while the impairment related to all other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income The Company
considers various factors in determining whether an individual security is other-than-temporarily impaired see Note

Investments

Defrrred policy acquisition costs Deferred policy acquisition costs DAC primarily represent commissions paid to Citizens

or outside agents at the time of collection of the policy premium salaries and premium taxes and are amortized over the life of the

related policy in relation to the amount of
gross premiums eamed The method followed in computing DAC limits the amount of such

deferred costs to theft estimated realizable value which gives effect to the premium eamed related investment income unpaid loss

and LAE and certain other costs expected to be incurred as the premium is eamed

DAC is reviewed to determine if it is recoverable from future income including investment income If such costs are

determined to be unrecoverable they are expensed at the time of determination The amount of DAC considered recoverable could be

reduced in the near term if the estimates of total revenues discussed above are reduced or permanently impaired as result of the

disposition of line of business The amount of amortization of DAC could be revised in the near term if any of the estimates

discussed above are revised

Property and Equipment Property and equipment is stated at cpst less accumulated depreciation and amortization Depreciation

is calculated on straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets Leasehold improvements are amortized over the

shorter of the lease term or the assets useful life Expenditures for improvements are capitalized to the property accounts

Replacements and maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed as incurred

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Long-lived assets such as property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable The Company assesses the

recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether the assets can be recovered from undiscounted future cash flows

Recoverability of long-lived assets is dependent upon among other things the Companys ability to maintain profitability so as to be

able to meet its obligations when they become due In the opinion of management based upon current information and projections

long-lived assets will be recovered over the period of benefit

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses Reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses LAE are determined by

establishing liabilities in amounts estimated to cover incurred losses and LAE Such reserves are determined based on the assessment

of claims reported and the development of pending claims These reserves are based on individual case estimates for the reported

losses and LAE and estimates of such amounts that are incurred but not reported Changes in the estimated liability are charged or

credited to eamings as the losses and LAE are settled

The estimates of unpaid losses and LAE are subject to trends in claim severity and frequency and are continually reviewed As

part of the process the Company reviews historical data and considers various factors including known and anticipated regulatory and

legal developments changes in social attitudes inflation and economic conditions As experience develops and other data becomes

available these estimates are revised as required resulting in increases or decreases to the existing unpaid losses and LAE
Adjustments are reflected in the results of operations in the period in which they are made and the liabilities may deviate substantially

from prior estimates

Reinsurance In the normal course of business the Company seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes or other

events that cause unfavorable underwriting results by reinsuring certain levels of risk in various areas of exposure with other insurance

enterprises or reinsurers Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in manner consistent with the reinsured policy

Reinsurance premiums and reserves related to reinsured business are accounted for on basis consistent with those used in accounting

for the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts Premiums ceded to other companies have been reported as

reduction of premium income Prepaid reinsurance premiums represent the unexpired portion of premiums ceded to reinsurers

continued
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Premium Revenue Premium revenue is earned on daily pro-rata basis over the term of the policies Unearned premiums

represent the portion of the premium related to the unexpired policy term

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continued

Policy Fees Policy fees represent nonrefundable application fees for insurance coverage which are intended to reimburse

portion of the costs incurred to underwrite the policy The fees and related costs are recognized when the policy is written

Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes ASC 740
ASC 740 results in two components of income tax expense current and deferred Current income tax expense reflects taxes to be paid

or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or excess of deductions over

revenues The Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability or balance sheet method Under this method the net

deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax bases of assets and liabilities and

enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which they occur

Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods Deferred tax assets are

recognized if it is more likely than not based on the technical merits that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon
examination The term more likely than not means likelihood of more than fifty percent the terms examined and upon examination

also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes
if any tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not

recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that has greater than fifty percent

likelihood of being realized upon settlement with taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information The

determination of whether or not tax position has met the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts

circumstances and information available at the reporting date and is subject to managements judgment Deferred tax assets are

reduced by valuation allowance if based on the weight of evidence available it is more likely than not that some portion or all of

deferred tax asset will not be realized As of December 31 201 inanagement is not aware of any uncertain tax positions that would

have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

The Company has elected to classify interest and penalties as income tax expense as permitted by current accounting standards

Fair Value of Financial Instruments The carrying amounts for the Companys cash and cash equivalents and short-term

investments approximate their fair values at December 31 2010 and 2009 due to their short-term nature Fair value for securities are

based on the framework for measuring fair value established by ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures see Note

Investments

Stock-Based Compensation The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under the fair value recognition provisions

of ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock Compensation which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation for all

stock-based awards made to employees and directors including stock options and restricted stock issuances based on estimated fair

values In accordance with ASC Topic 718 the Company recognizes stock-based compensation in the consolidated statements of
-I

earnings on straight-line basis over the vesting period

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted-average number of common shares

outstanding Diluted earnings per share is computed based on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding plus the effect of

outstanding stock options and warrants computed using the treasury stock method

Reclassifications Certain reclassifications of prior year amounts have been made to conform to the current year presentation

Note Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Standards Update No 201 0-26 In October 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2010-26

ASU 2010-26 Financial Services Insurance ASC Topic 944 Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing

Insurance Contracts The objective of the amendments in ASU 20 10-26 is to address diversity in practice regarding the interpretation

of which costs relating to the acquisition of new or renewal insurance contracts qualify for deferral The amendments in ASU 2010-26

specify which costs should be capitalized The amendments in ASU 2010-26 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within

those fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 and should be applied prospectively upon adoption Retrospective application to

all prior periods presented upon the date of adoption is permitted but not required Early adoption is permitted but only at the

beginning of an entitys annual reporting period Management is currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2010-26 and the effect

adoption of this guidance will have on the Companys consolidated financial statements
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Note Recent Accounting Pronouncements continued

Accounting Standards Update No 2010-28 In December 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2010-28

ASU 2010-28 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic 350 When to perform Step of the Goodwill Impairment Test for

Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts The objective of ASU 20 10-28 is to address questions about entities with

reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts because some entities concluded that Step of the test is passed in those

circumstances because the fair value of their reporting unit will generally be greater than zero The amendments in ASU 20 10-28

modify Step of the goodwill impairment test for reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts For those reporting units an

entity is now required to perform Step of the goodwill test if it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment exists The

amendments in ASU 20 10-28 are effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning after December 15
2010 Early adoption is not permitted The adoption of this guidance is not expected to have material effect on the Companys
consolidated financial statements

Accounting Standards Update No 2010-29 In December 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2010-29

ASU 20 10-29 Business Combinations Topic 805 Disclosure ofSupplementary Pro Forma Inform ation for Business

Combinations The objective of ASU 20 10-29 is to address diversity in practice about the interpretation of the pro forma revenue and

earnings disclosure requirements for business combinations The amendments in ASU 20 10-29 specify that if public entity presents

comparative fmancial statements the entity should disclose revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business

combinations that occurred during the current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period

only The amendments in ASU 2010-29 are effective prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or

after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2010 Early adoption is permitted The

adoption of this guidance is not expected to have material effect on the Companys consolidated financial statements

Note Investments

The Company holds investments in fixed maturity securities as well as equity securities which are classified as available for

sale At December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 the amortized cost gross unrealized gains and losses and estimated fair value of

the Companys available-for-sale securities by security type were as follows in thousands

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gain Loss Value

December 31 2010

Fixed Maturity Securities

U.S Treasury and U.S government agencies 8044 88 37 8095

Corporate bonds 12192 149 75 12266

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 7756 40 53 7743

Other 464 460

Total 28456 282 174 28564

Equity securities 1061 12 189 884

December 31 2009

Fixed Maturity Securities

U.S Treasury notes 14712 505 14207

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 5051 44 36 5059

Total 19763 44 541 19266
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Note Investments continued

At December 31 2009 the Company held investments in fixed maturity securities comprised of corporate bonds which were
classified as held-to-maturity The amortized cost and estimated fair value of these investments at December 31 2009 are summarized

as follows in thousands

Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gain Loss value

December 31 2009

Corporate Bonds 4049 237 36 4250

During the quarter ended June 30 2010 upon the sale of one security held to maturity the Company reclassified all remaining
held to maturity securities to available for sale The Company does not anticipate using the held to maturity classification in the future

While the Company continues to have the ability to hold these securities to maturity the transfers to available for sale were made as

result of change in managements objectives with respect to its investment portfolio which was newly established in the second

quarter of 2009

The scheduled maturities of fixed maturity securities at December 31 2010 are as follows in thousands

Amortized Fair

Cost value

Available-for-sale

Due in one year or less 69 67

Due after one year through five years 6579 6561

Due after five years through ten years 13657 13798
Due after ten years 395 395

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 7756 7743

28456 28564

In vestment Sales 2010

Proceeds received and the gross realized gains and losses from sales of available for sale securities for the
year ended

December 31 2010 were as follows in thousands

Gross Realized Gross Realized

Proceeds Gains Losses

Year ended December 31 2010

Fixed maturity securities $29116 1828 17
Equity securities 4515 369 177

Amounts reported for the
year ended December 31 2010 include the

gross realized gains and losses from equity option contracts

During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company entered into equity contracts for exchange traded call and put options to

meet certain investment objectives With respect to these option contracts the Company received net proceeds of $391000 and

realized gain of $327000 which is included in the realized investment gains in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings There

were no open option contracts at December 31 2010

In vestment Sales 2009

During the
year

ended December 31 2009 the Company sold one fixed maturity security for gross proceeds of $863000
resulting in realized investment loss of less than $1000
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Other-than-temporary Impairment OTTI
The Company regularly reviews its individual investment securities for OTTI The Company considers various factors in

determining whether each individual security is other-than-temporarily impaired including

the fmancial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer including any specific events that may affect its operations or

eamings

the length of time and the extent to which the market value of the security has been below its cost or amortized cost

general market conditions and industry or sector specific factors

nonpayment by the issuer of its contractually obligated interest and principal payments and

the Companys intent and ability to hold the investment for period of time sufficient to allow for the
recovery

of costs

Securities with gross unrealized loss positions at December 31 2010 aggregated by investment category and length of time the

individual securities have been in continuous loss position are as follows in thousands

Less Than twelve months

Gross

Unrealized Fair

Loss value

U.S Treasury notes 37 2734

Corporate bonds 75 3876

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 53 3513

Other 351

Total fixed maturity securities 174 10474

Equity securities 189 514

The Company believes there were no thndamental issues such as credit losses or other factors with respect to any of its

available-for-sale securities The unrealized losses on investments in fixed maturity securities were caused by interest rate changes It

is expected that the securities would not be settled at price less than the
par

value of the investments In determining whether equity

securities are other than temporarily impaired the Company considers its intent and ability to hold security for period of time

sufficient to allow for the
recovery

of cost Because the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in interest rates or market

conditions and not credit quality and because the Company has the ability and intent to hold its available-for-sale investments until

market price recovery or maturity the Company does not consider any of its investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at

December 31 2010

Investment income is summarized as follows in thousands

Year ended December 31

2010 2009

Time deposits 530 665

Short-term investments 94 398

Fixed maturity securities 1112 508

Cash and cash equivalents 226 222

1962 1793
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The following time deposits and short-term investments exceeded 10% of consolidated stockholders equity at December 31
2010 and 2009 in thousands

Name of Financial Institution Amount at December 31

2010 2009

ParadiseBank 5260 5115
Regions Bank 8773 8392
Synovus Bank 5168

14033 18675

At December 31 2010 the Company also had one single investment in U.S Treasury notes exceeding 10% of consolidated

stockholders equity This investment is carried at its $4.7 million fair value and included in investments in fixed maturity securities at

December 31 2010 There were no single investments exceeding 10% of consolidated stockholders equity at December 31 2009

In addition at December 31 2010 and 2009 cash and cash equivalents included $14.7 million and $21.6 million respectively

on deposit at one national bank At December 31 2010 the Company also had an aggregate of $16.4 million in cash on deposit at two

brokerage firms

Note Fair Value Measurements

Fair values of the Companys available-for-sale fixed maturity securities are determined in accordance with ASC Topic 820
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure using valuation techuiques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the

use of unobservable inputs Fair values are generally measured using quoted prices in active markets for identical securities or other

inputs that are observable either directly or indirectly such as quoted prices for similar securities In those instances where observable

inputs are not available fair values are measured using unobservable inputs Unobservable inputs reflect the Companys own
assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the security and are developed based on the best

information available in the circumstances Fair value estimates derived from unobservable inputs are significantly affected by the

assumptions used including the discount rates and the estimated amounts and timing of fUture cash flows The derived fair value

estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that would

be realized in current market exchange

The fair values for fixed maturity securities that do not trade on daily basis are determined by management utilizing prices
obtained from an independent pricing service and information provided by brokers Management reviews the assumptions and

methods utilized by the pricing service and then compares the relevant data and pricing to broker-provided data The Company gains

assurance of the overall reasonableness and consistent application of the assumptions and methodologies and compliance with

accounting standards for fair value determination through ongoing monitoring of the reported fair values

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels as

follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

Level Other inputs that are observable for the asset either directly or indirectly

Level Inputs that are unobservable
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Note Fair Value Measurements continued

The following table presents information about the Companys available-for-sale fixed maturity securities measured at fair value

as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Company to

determine such fair value in thousands

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level Total

As of December 31 2010

Fixed maturity securities

U.S Treasury and U.S government agencies 8095 8095

Corporate bonds 12266 12266

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 7743 7743

Other 460 460

Total fixed maturity securities 20361 8203 28564

Equity securities 884 884

Total available-for-sale securities 21245 8203 29448

Quoted Prices Significant

in Active Other
Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable

Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

Level Level Level Total

As of December 31 2009

U.S Treasury and U.S government agencies 14207 14207

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 5059 5059

Total fixed maturity securities 14207 5059 19266

There were no transfers between Levels or dUring the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Note Property and Equipment net

Property and equipment net consists of the following in thousands

At December 31

2010 2009

Building 5883
Land 1241

Computer hardware and software 508 236

Office and ifirniture and equipment 253 223

Other 138 31

Total at cost 8023 490

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 268 Jj
Property and equipment net 7755 399

The Company has lease for office space located in Clearwater Florida This lease commenced in July 2008 and requires the

ompany to make monthly rent payments of $12500 which includes $2500 for common area maintenance to an entity owned by

one of the Companys directors The initial term of this agreement is for five years ending on July 15 2013 and the lease may be

extended for up to three additional five-year periods In addition to this primary location the Company leases on month-to-month

basis small office space in building adjacent to the corporate office location This lease requires the Company to pay base rent of

approximately $2200 per
month The Company is required to provide 30-day notice to terminate this lease Rental expense under all

facility leases was $191000 and $181000 during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively
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Note Property and Equipment net continued

On June 2010 the Company purchased property in Tampa Florida for total purchase price of $7.1 million The property
consists of 3.5 acres of land building with gross area of 122000 square feet and three-story parking garage valued at $1.2 million

$5.3 million and $0.6 million respectively This facility will be used by the Company and its subsidiaries all of which will be

headquartered in the new facility The Company expects to complete the relocation of its employees and infrastructure by early 2011

upon completion of various building improvements which are expected to cost the Company between $1.50 million and $1.75

million In addition the Company expects to lease to non-affiliates up to forty-nine percent of the buildings office space which

includes space occupied by existing tenants under lease agreements assumed by the Company at acquisition

Lease commitments at December 31 2010 are as follows

Amount
Year Ended December 31 in thousands

2011 150

2012 150

2013 88

Total 388

Note Reinsurance

The Company cedes portion of its homeowners insurance exposure to other entities under catastrophe excess of loss

reinsurance treaties The Company remains liable with respect to claims payments in the event that any of the reinsurers are unable to

meet their obligations under the reinsurance agreements The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors

concentrations of credit risk arising from similargeographic regions activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers to

minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies

The impact of the catastrophe excess of loss reinsurance treaties on premiums written and eamed is as follows in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Premiums Written

Direct 114599 92683

Assumed 1683 18618

Grosswritten 116282 111301

Ceded 57322 44674

Net premiums written 58960 66627

Premiums Earned

Direct 104621 68555

Assumed 15136 41456

Gross earned 119757 110011

Ceded 57322 44674

Net premiums eamed 62435 65337

During the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 there were no recoveries pertaining to reinsurance contracts that were
deducted from losses incurred and there were no such amounts recoverable at December 31 2010 and 2009 Thus there were no

concentrations of credit risk associated with reinsurance receivables as of December 31 2010 and 2009 At December 31 2010 and

2009 prepaid reinsurance premiums related to 18 and 26 reinsurers respectively

At December 31 2010 and 2009 assumed reinsurance balances receivable amount to $26000 and $19.5 million respectively

Such receivables were related to the December assumption transactions in each year of certain policies assumed from Citizens
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Note Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses LAE is determined on an individual case basis for all claims reported

The liability also includes amounts for unallocated expenses anticipated future claim development and losses incurred but not

reported

Activity in the liability for unpaid losses and LAE is summarized as follows in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Balance beginning of year 19178 14763

Incurred related to

Current
year 37432 39103

Prior
year 235 3873

Total incurred 37667 35230

Paid related to

Current year 19477 23090
Prior year 15222 7725

Total paid 34699 30815

Balance end ofyear 22146 19178

The Company writes insurance in the state of Florida which could be exposed to hurricanes or other natural catastrophes

Although the occurrence of major catastrophe could have significant effect on our monthly or quarterly results the Company
believes that such an event would not be so material as to disrupt the overall normal operations of the Company However the

Company is unable to predict the frequency or severity of any such events that may occur in the near term or thereafter

Note 8Income Taxes

summary of income taxes is as follows in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Federal

Current 1238 4721

Deferred 1449 1129

Federal income taxes 2687 5850

State

Current 236 802

Deferred 241 187

State income taxes 477 989

Income taxes 3164 6839
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The reasons for the differences between the statutory Federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate are summarized as

follows dollars in thousands

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009

Amount Amount

Income taxes at statutory rate 3005 35.0% $6212 35.0%

Increase decrease in income taxes resulting from

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit 313 3.6 643 3.6

Stock-based compensation 13 .2 13 .1

Other 167 1.9 29 .2

Income taxes 3164 36.9% $6839 38.5%

The Company has no uncertain tax positions or unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would impact the effective income

tax rate The tax years ending December 31 2009 2008 and 2007 remain subject to examination by our major taxing jurisdictions
There have been no interest or penalties recognized for the

years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 In February 2011 the Company
received notice from the Internal Revenue Service with respect to an examination of the Companys 2008 and 2009 federal income tax

returns The examination is expected to commence during the second quarter of 2011

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

for fmancial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes

Significant components of our net deferred income tax asset are as follows in thousands

At December 31

2010 2009

Deferred income tax assets

Uneamed premiums 3262 5286
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 610 483

Organizational costs 129 140

Stock-based compensation 355 459

Other 19

Unrealized net loss on securities available for sale 27 191

Deferred tax assets 4402 6559

Deferred tax liabilities

Depreciation 123 72
Deferred policy acquisition costs 3690 4049
Other

Deferred tax liabilities 3818 4121
Net deferred income tax asset 584 2438

valuation allowance is established if based upon the relevant facts and circumstances management believes any portion of

the tax assets will not be realized Although realization of deferred income tax assets is not certain management believes it is more

likely than not that deferred tax assets will be realized As result the Company did not have valuation allowance established as of

December 31 2010 or 2009
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

Note Net Earnings Per Share

summaiy of the numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted earnings per share is presented below dollars and shares

in thousands except per
share amounts

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Numerator

Net earnings 5422 10910

Denominator

Weighted average shares basic 6179 6731

Effect of dilutive securities

Stock options 495 458

Shares issuable upon conversion of warrants

Weighted average shares diluted 6674 7189

Earnings per share-basic 0.88 1.62

Earnings per sharediluted 0.81 1.52

For the year ended December 31 2009 40000 options to purchase 40000 shares of common stock were excluded from the

computation of diluted earnings per
share because the exercise price of $7.00 exceeded the average market price of the Companys

common stock For the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 1738335 and 1738668 warrants respectively to purchase

905001 and 945334 shares of common stock respectively were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because

the exercise price of $9.10 exceeded the average market price of the Companys common stock

Note 10 Stockholders Equity

Common Stock

Effective March 18 2009 the Companys Board of Directors authorized plan to repurchase up to $3.0 million inclusive of

commissions of the Companys common shares The repurchase plan allowed the Company to repurchase shares from time to time

through March 19 2010 This repurchase plan was supplemented in December 2009 upon approval by the Board of Directors to

extend the repurchase authority by an additional $3.0 million and continue until the repurchase plan is terminated by the Company or

the maximum number of dollars has been expended The shares may be purchased for cash in open market purchases block

transactions and privately negotiated transactions in accordance with applicable federal securities laws The share repurchase plan may
be modified suspended terminated or extended by the Company any time without prior notice During the

year
ended December 31

2010 the Company repurchased and retired total of 311239 shares at an average price of $7.00 per share and total cost inclusive

of fees and commissions of $2196392 or $7.06 per share under this authorized repurchase program During the year ended

December 31 2009 the Company repurchased and retired total of 452033 shares at an average price of $6.83 per share and total

cost inclusive of fees and commissions of $3111000 or $6.88 per share At December 31 2010 total of $692784 is available in

connection with this plan

continued
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

Note 10 Stockholders Equity continued

In addition in January 2010 the Company repurchased and retired total of 200000 shares of the Companys common stock at

price of $7.00 per share for total cost of $1400000 see Note 15 Related Party Transactions Such repurchase was not part of

publicly announced plan or program

Common Stock Warrants

At December 31 2010 the Company has reserved 905001 shares of common stock for issuance upon the exercise of its

common stock warrants all of which were issued coincident with the Company initial public offering IPO summary of the

warrant activity for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 is presented below

Number -Number of Common Shares

Of Warrants Issuable Upon Conversion

Issued of Warrants

Warrants issued with IPO units 1666668 833334
Warrants issued to the Companys placement agents net of 61666

warrants forfeited 105000 105000

Warrants outstanding at December 31 2008 1771668 938334
Placement agent warrants repurchased 33 000 33 000

--
Warrants outstanding at December 31 2009 1738668 905334
Placement agent warrants repurchased by the Company at price of $1.20

--- --
per warrant in January 2010 333 333

Warrants outstanding at December 31 2010 1738335 905001

The warrants may be exercised at an exercise price equal to $9.10 per share on or before July 30 2013 At any time after

January 30 2009 and before the expiration of the warrants the Company at its option may cancel the warrants in whole or in part

provided that the closing price per share of the Companys common stock has exceeded $11.38 for at least ten trading days within any
period of twenty consecutive trading days including the last trading day of the period The placement agents also have the option to

-- f- effect cashless exercise in which the warrants would be exchanged for the number of shares which is equal to the intrinsic value of

--
the warrant divided by the current value of the underlying shares

Prefrrred Stock

At December 31 2010 the Company is authorized to issue 20000000 shares of preferred stock no par value The authorized

but unissued preferred stock may be issued in one or more series and the shares of each series shall have such rights as determined by
the Companys Board of Directors See Note 17 Subsequent Events

Note 11 Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income are as follows in thousands

Year Ended

--

December 31

2010 2009

--

Net income 5422 10910

Other comprehensive income

Change in unrealized gain on investments

Unrealized gainlloss arising during the year 2431 497
Reclassification adjustment for realized gains 2003

Net change in unrealized gains 428 497
Deferred income taxes on above changes 164 191

Other comprehensive gainlloss 264 306
Comprehensive income 5686 10604

continued
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Continued

Note 12 Stock-Based Compensation

Stock Option Plan

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC Topic 718

Compensation Stock Compensation

The Companys 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan the Plan provides for granting of stock options to employees

directors consultants and advisors of the Company Under the Plan options may be granted to purchase total of 6000000 shares of

the Companys common stock At December 31 2010 options to purchase 4850000 shares are available for grant under the Plan

.-- The options vest over periods ranging from immediately vested to five years and are exercisable over the contractual term often years

summary of the activity in the Companys stock option plan is as follows dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Weighted-

Weighted- Average

Average Remaining Aggregate

Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Term Value

Outstanding at December 31 2008 1146000 2.66

Exercised 16000 2.50

Outstanding at December 31 2009 1130000 2.66

Forfeited 40000 7.00

Exercised 260000 2.50

Outstanding at December 31 2010 830000 2.50 6.4 years 4631

Exercisable at December 31 2010 774000 2.50 6.4 years 4318

There were no options granted during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

At December 31 2010 and 2009 there was approximately $50000 and $185000 respectively of total unrecognized

compensation expense related to norivested stock-based compensation arrangements granted under the plan The Company expects to

recognize the remaining compensation expense over weighted-average period of sixteen 16 months During the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 total of 260000 and 16000 options respectively were exercised The total fair value of shares

vesting and recognized as compensation expense was approximately $87000 and $483000 respectively for the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 and the associated income tax benefit recognized was $0 and $164000 respectively The total intrinsic

value of options exercised during the
years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 was $1097600 and $42000 respectively and the

income tax benefit recognized was $301000 and $9000 respectively

Note 13 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is party to claims and legal actions arising routinely in the ordinary course of business In the opinion of

management the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have material adverse effect on the consolidated fmancial position or

liquidity

As direct premium writer in the state of Florida the Company is required to participate in certain insurer pools and

associations under Florida statutes 631.573 Participation in these pools is based on written premium by line of business to total

premiums written statewide by all insurers Participation may result in assessments against the Company For the
years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 HCPC collected and paid assessments to the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund FHCF amounting to

$987000 and $947000 respectively Additionally HCPC collected and paid assessments to Citizens of $1382000 and $1326000

respectively for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 These assessments are recorded as surcharge in premium billings to

insureds The surcharges are 1.0% of premium for the FHCF and 1.4% for Citizens

HCPC has qualified as Limited Apportionment Company in Florida for one-year period beginning in April 2010 This

designation allows the Company to pay assessments from regulatory agencies as assessments from insureds are recouped rather than

paying the assessment and then recouping from the insureds/ policyholders

Claddaugh has been required since inception to maintain minimum capital and surplus of $2.0 million

continued
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Note 14 Regulatory Requirements and Restrictions

The Florida Insurance Code the Code requires HCPC to maintain capital and surplus equal to the greater of 10% of its

liabilities or statutory minimum as defined in the Code At December 31 2010 and 2009 HCPC is required to maintain minimum

capital and surplus of $4.0 million At December 31 2010 and 2009 HCPCs statutory capital and surplus was $31.1 million and

$24.1 million respectively For the year ended December 31 2010 HCPC had statutory net loss of $2.3 million For the year ended

December 31 2009 HCPC had statutory net loss of $0.6 million Statutory surplus differs from stockholders equity reported in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles primarily because policy acquisition costs are expensed when incurred In

addition the recognition of deferred tax assets is based on different recoverability assumptions

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 HCPC had cash deposit with the Insurance Commissioner of the state of Florida in the

amount of $300000 to meet regulatory requirements At December 31 2010 and 2009 there were no material permitted statutory

accounting practices utilized by RCPC

Under Florida law domestic insurer may not pay any dividend or distribute cash or other property to its stockholders except

out of that part of its available and accumulated capital and surplus fimds which is derived from realized net operating profits on its

business and net realized capital gains Florida domestic insurer may not make dividend payments or distributions to stockholders

without prior approval of the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation OIR if the dividend or distribution would exceed the larger of

the lesser of 10.0% of its capital surplus or net income not including realized capital gains plus two year carry forward
II

10.0% of capital surplus with dividends payable constrained to unassigned funds minus 25% of unrealized capital gains or the

lesser of 0.0% of capital surplus or net investment income plus three year carry forward with dividends payable constrained

to unassigned funds minus 25% of unrealized capital gains At December 31 2010 and 2009 no dividends are available to be paid by

HCPC

The Bermuda Monetary Authority requires Claddaugh to niaintain minimum capital and surplus of $2.0 million At

December 31 2010 and 2009 Claddaughs statutory capital aitd surplus was $4.5 million and $5.5 million respectively Claddaughs

statutory net profit was $4.9 million and $3.5 million respectively for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

Note 15 Related Party Transactions

One of the Companys directors receives consulting fee and software license fees for development and use of the Companys

premium administration application software Under this arrangement the Company incurred fees of $359000 and $352000 for the

years
ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Software license fees totaling $129000 and $71000 were unpaid at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

One of the Companys directors is partner at law firm that manages certain of the Companys corporate legal matters Fees

incurred with respect to this law firm for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were approximately $266000 and $103000

respectively

As discussed in Note the Company leases office space under an operating lease agreement with one director The lease

requires annual base rental payments of approximately $150000 Lease payments on this property for each of the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 totaled $160000

Effective January 20 2010 the Company repurchased and retired total of 200000 shares of the Companys common stock at

price of $7.00 per share for total cost of $1400000 Such shares were repurchased under stock purchase agreement with one of the

Companys directors at price below the $7.95 market value of the Companys common stock on the date of the transaction Such

repurchases were not part of publicly announced plan or program In addition the Company paid $10000 consulting fee during

2010 to this director for investment advisory services

continued
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Note 16 Condensed Financial Information of Homeowners Choice Inc

Condensed fmancial information of Homeowners Choice Inc is as follows in thousands

Balance Sheets

At December 31

2010 2009

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 416 346

Short-term investments 2074 1994

Investment in subsidiaries 60366 48774
Income taxes receivable 674

Property and equipment net 214 254

Deferred income taxes 265 401

Other assets 374 148

Total assets 63709 52591

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity

Accrued
expenses

and other liabilities 290 252

Income taxes payable 3562
Due to related parties 13228 6961

Total liabilities 17080 7213

Total stockholders equity 46629 45378

Total liabilities and stockholders equity 63709 52591

Statements of Earnings

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Investment income 80 80

Other income 45 22

Other operating expenses 1427 1687
Loss before income tax benefit and equity in eamings of subsidiaries 1302 1585
Income tax benefit 485 520

Net loss before equity in eamings of subsidiaries 817 1065
Equity in eamings of subsidiaries 6239 11975

Net income 5422 10910

continued
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Note 16 Condensed Financial Information of Homeowners Choice Inc continued

Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 5422 10910

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Stock-based compensation 87 483

Depreciation and amortization 84 67

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 20

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries 6239 11975
Deferred income tax benefit 136 103
Increase decrease in other assets 226 28

Increase decrease in accrued expenses and other liabilities 38 294
Decrease increase in income taxes receivable 674 674
Increase in income taxes payable 3562
Increase in due to related parties 6267 4229

Net cash provided by operating activities 9805 2691

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of short-term investments 80 76
Repayment of note receivable 450

Purchase of property and equipment net 44 174
Dividends received from subsidiary 4800
Investment in subsidiaries 9889

_________

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 5213 200

Cash flows from financing activities

Repurchases of common stock 3596 3111
Repurchases of common stock warrants 40
Dividends paid to stockholders 1877
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 650 40

Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised 301

Net cash used in financing activities 4522 3102
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 70 211
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 346 557

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 416 346

continued
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Note 17 Subsequent Events

On January 26 2011 the Companys Board of Directors declared quarterly dividend of $0.10 per common share The

dividends were paid March 18 2011 to stockholders of record on February 18 2011

On February 2011 the Company filed Amendment No on Foun S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission under

which the Company offered for sale minimum of 1200000 shares up to maximum of 1500000 shares of its 7% Series

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock Series Preferred On March 25 2011 the offering was completed with total of

1247700 shares of Series Preferred being issued by the Company for gross proceeds of approximately $12.5 million before

deducting offering expenses which are expected to total approximately $1.2 million including placement agent fees and expenses The

Company intends to use the net proceeds from this offering of approximately $11.3 million for general corporate purposes Dividends

on the Series Preferred will be cumulative from the date of original issue and will accrue on the last day of each month at an annual

rate of 7% of the $10.00 liquidation preference per share Each share of the Series Preferred will be convertible at the holders

option at any time initially into one share of the Companys common stock based upon an initial conversion price of $10.00 per share

The Company may terminate this conversion right on or after March 31 2014 if for at least twenty trading days within any period of

thirty consecutive trading days the market price of the Companys common stock exceeds the conversion price of the Series

Preferred by more than 20% and the Companys common stock is then traded on the New York Stock Exchange the NASDAQ
Global Select Market the NASDAQ Global Market the NASDAQ Capital Market or the NYSE Amex Shares of the Series

Preferred will have no voting rights except under limited circumstances
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ITEM Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

ITEM 9A Con trols and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management under the supervision of our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer conducted an

evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report

December 31 2010 as is defmed in Rule 3a- 15e promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended Our

disclosure controls and procedures are intended to ensure that the information we are required to disclose in the reports that we file or

submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods

specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms and ii accumulated and communicated to our management
including the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures

Based on that evaluation our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer concluded that as of the end of the

period covered by this Annual Report our disclosure controls and procedures were effective

It should be noted that any system of controls however well designed and operated can provide only reasonable and not

absolute assurance that the objectives of the system will be met In addition the design of any control system is based in part upon
certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting as defined in

Rule 3a- 15f and 5d-1 51 of the Exchange Act Intemal control over fmancial reporting is
process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for external
purposes

in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in thp IJnited States of America

Our internal control over fmancial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records

that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets ii provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of our management and directors and iiiprovide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of

changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate Our management with the

participation of our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our

internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission Based on this evaluation our Principal Executive Officer and Principal

Financial Officer concluded that as of December 31 2010 our internal control over fmancial reporting was effective

This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding

internal control over financial reporting Managements report was not subject to attestation by our independent registered public

accounting firm pursuant to the final ruling of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permits us to provide only managements

report in this Annual Report

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During our most recent fiscal quarter there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that have

materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B Other Information

None
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PART III

ITEM 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement relating to our annual

meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of our fiscal year ended

December 31 2010

ITEM 11 Executive Compensation

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement relating to our annual

meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of our fiscal year ended

December 312010

ITEM 12Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference from our definitive proxy statement relating to our annual

meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of our fiscal year ended

December 31 2010

Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans are summarized under Part II Item on Page 19 of this

Form 10-K

--

ITEM 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required under this item is incorporated by reference from our defmitive proxy statement relating to our annual

meeting of shareholders which will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of our fiscal year ended

December 31 2010

ITEM 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees for services related to the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 provided

by Hacker Johnson Smith PA our principal accountant

2010 2009

Audit Fees $115000 108000

All Other Fees 25000
________

Total $140000 $108000

Audit Fees represent fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements review of our

quarterly fmancial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and audit services provided in connection with

other statutory and regulatory filings

All Other Fees represent fees billed for services provided to us not otherwise included in the categories above primarily fees

related to the review of our registration statement in connection with our preferred stock offering

PART IV

ITEM 15Exhibits Financial Statements and Schedules

Financial Statements Financial Statement Schedules and Exhibits

Consolidated Financial Statements See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II Item of this Form 10-K

Financial Statement Schedules

Any supplemental information we are required to file with respect to our property and casualty insurance operations is included

in Part II Item of this Form 10-K
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Exhibits See the exhibit listing set forth below

The following documents are filed as part of this report

EXHIBIT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of Homeowners Choice Inc as amended

3.2 Bylaws as amended April 16 2009 Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Current

Report on Form 8-K filed April 23 2009

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Post-

Effective Amendment No to our Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333 150513 filed August 2008

4.2 Warrant Agreement dated July 30 2008 between Homeowners Choice Inc and American Stock Transfer Trust

Company Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Post-Effective Amendment No to

our Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-1505 13 filed August 2008

4.3 Form of Warrant Certificate Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit Post-Effective

Amendment No ito our Registration Statement on Form S-I File No 333-150513 filed August 2008

4.4 Warrant Agreement dated July 30 2008 between Homeowners Choice Inc and Anderson Strudwick Incorporated

Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Post-Effective Amendment No to our

Registration Statement on Form File No 333-1505 13 filed August 2008

4.5 Form of Warrant Certificate issued to Anderson Strudwick Incorporated Incorporated by reference to the

correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Post-Effective Amendment No to our Registration Statement on Form S-

File No 333-150513 filed August 62008

4.6 Form of Unit Certificate Incorporated by reference tothe correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Post-Effective

Amendment No ito our Registration Statement onForm S-i File No 333-150513 filed August 2008

4.7 Warrant Agreement dated July 30 2008 between Homeowners Choice Inc and GunnAllen Financial Inc Incorporated

by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Post-Effective Amendment No to our Registration

Statement on Form S-i File No 333-150513 filed August 2008

4.8 Letter Agreement dated August 2008 among Homeowners Choice Inc Anderson Strudwick Incorporated and

GunnAllen Financial Inc whereby wewaive certain cancellation rights under warrants issued to the other parties

Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Post-Effective Amendment No to our

Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-1505 13 filed August 2008

4.9 See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 of this report for provisions of the Articles of Incorporation as amended and our Bylaws as

amended defming certain rights of security holders See also Exhibits 10.6 and 10.7 defining certain rights of the

recipients of stock options and other equity-based awards

4.10 Specimen 7% Series Cumulative Preferred Stock Certificate Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Form 8-A filed

March25 2011

10.1 Executive Agreement dated May 2007 between Homeowners Choice Inc and Francis McCahill III Incorporated by
reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-150513
originally filed April 30 2008 effective July 24 2008 as amended

10.2 Executive Agreement dated May 2007 between Homeowners Choice Inc and Richard Allen Incorporated by

reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-i50513
originally filed April 30 2008 effective July 24 2008 as amended

10 Consulting Agreement dated June 2007 between Homeowners Choice Inc and Scorpio Systems Inc Incorporated by
reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-150513
originally filed April 30 2008 effective July 24 2008 as amended See amendment to Consulting Agreement at Exhibit

iO.i2

10.6 Homeowners Choice Inc 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly

numbered exhibit to our Form iO-Q filed August 29 2008

10.7 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our

Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-1505 13 originally filed April 30 2008 effective July 24 2008 as

amended
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EXHIBIT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

10.9 Software License Agreement executed April 2008 with an effective date of November 2007 by and between

Homeowners Choice Inc and Scorpio Systems Inc Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to

our Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-1505 13 originally filed April 30 2008 effective July 24 2008
amended

10.10 PR-M Non-Bonus Assumption Agreement dated December 2007 by and between Homeowners Choice Property

Casualty Insurance Company Inc and Citizens Property Insurance Corporation Incorporated by reference to the

correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Form 10-K filed March 30 2010

10.12 Amendment dated August 21 2008 to Consulting Agreement dated June 2007 between Homeowners Choice Inc and

Scorpio Systems Inc Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Form 8-K filed August 21 2008

10.13 Excess Catastrophe Reinsurance Contract effective June 2010 by Homeowners Choice Property and Casualty Insurance

Company Inc and Subscribing Reinsurers Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to request for confidential

treatment Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Form i0-Q filed August 13 2010

10.14 Reinstatement Premium Protection Agreement effective June 2010 by Homeowners Choice Property and Casualty

Insurance Company Inc and Subscribing Reinsurers Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to request for

confidential treatment Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Form i0-Q filed

August 132010

10.15 Aggregate Excess Catastrophe Reinsurance Agreement dated June 2010 by Homeowners Choice Property and Casualty

Insurance Company Inc and Subscribing Reinsurers Portions of this exhibit have been omitted pursuant to request for

confidential treatment Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Form 10-Q filed

August 13 2010

10.17 Form of indemnification agreement for our officers and directors Incorporated by reference to the correspondingly

numbered exhibit to our Form lO-Q filed August 12 2009

10.18 Lease Agreement dated April 2008 between 2340 Drew St LLC and Homeowners Choice Inc Incorporated by

reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-i File No 333-150513

originally filed April 30 2008 effective July 24 2008 as amended

10.19 Reimbursement Contract effective June 2010 between Homeowners Choice Property and Casualty Insurance Company
and the State Board of Administration which administers the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund Incorporated by

reference to the correspondingly numbered exhibit to our Form 10-Q filed August 13 2010

21 Subsidiaries of Homeowners Choice Inc

23 Consent of Hacker Johnson Smith PA

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Written Statement of the ChiefExecutive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C.ss.1350

32.2 Written Statement of the ChiefFinancial Officer Pursuant tQ 18 U.S.C.ss.1350
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized who has signed this report on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and

on the dates indicated

HOMEOWNERS CHOICE INC

March 29 2011
By

Is Francis McCahill III

Francis McCahill III

President and ChiefExecutive Officer

Principal Executive Officer

March 29 2011
By

/5/ Richard Allen

Richard Allen

ChiefFinancial Officer

Principal Financial and Accounting Officer

March 29 2011
By

Is Paresh Patel

.1
Paresh Pate

Chairman of the Board of Directors

March 29 2011
By

Is George Apostolou

George Apostolou Director

March 29 2011
By

Is Sanjay Macthu

Sanjay Madhu Director

March 29 2011
By

Is Krishna Persaud

Krishna Persuad Director

March 29 2011
By

Is Gregory Politis

Gregory Politis Director

March 29 2011
By

Is Anthony Saravanos

Anthony Saravanos Director

March 29 2011
By

Is Martin Traber

Martin Traber Director

signed original of this document has been provided to Homeowners Choice Inc and will be retained by Homeowners Choice Inc

and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request
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Francis McCahilI III

President Chief Executive Officer

Director

Richard Allen

Chief Financial Officer

Paresh Patel

Executive Chairman of the Board

Jay Madhu
Vice President Marketing

Investor Relations

Director

Andrew Graham
Vice President and General Counsel

Investor Information

Form10-K and Investor

Inquiries

Direct all inquiries for investor relations

information including requests for

copies of the companys Form 10-K

and other reports filed with the SECto

Investor Relations

Jay Madhu
Vice President Marketing and

Investor Relations

Homeowners Choice Inc

2340 Drew Street Suite 200

Clearwater FL 33765

Phone 727 213-3660

Fax 727 797-7591

jmadhu@hcpci.com

Stock Information

George Apostolou
Director

Mr Apostolou is the President of George

Apostolou Construction Corporation

Kris Persaud
Director

Mr Persaud is President of KPC Properties

LLC real estate investment firm

Gregory Politis

Director

Mr Pofitis is President of Xenia

Management LLC real estate portfolio

management company

The annu rneeting will be held on

Wednesday May 25 2011 300 p.m
at the companys Tampa offices

5300 West Cypress Street Suite 101

Tampa FL 33607

Homeowners Choice Inc

2340 Drew Street Suite 200

Clearwater FL 33765

Phone 727 213-3600

Fax 727 797-7591

Anthony Saravanos
Director

Mr Sara vanos is Vice President of The

Boardwalk Company full-service real

estate company

Martin Traber
Director

Mr Traber is Partner of Foley Lardner LLF
in Tampa Florida representing clients in

securities and corporate law transactions

Registrar and Transfer Agent

American Stock Transfer and

Trust Company
6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn NY 11219

Tel 800 937-5449

Tel 718 921-8124

Independent Registered Public

Accounting Firm

Hacker Johnson Smith PA

Tampa Florida

Executive Officers Directors

Annual Stockholders Meeting

Headquarters Location

The companys common shares trade on
the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the

ticker symbol HCII and are included in the

Russell Microcap Index Its warrants trade on
the same market under the ticker symbol HCIIW

Its preferred shares trade on the NASDAQ Capital

Market under the ticker symbol HCIIP

HOMEOWNERS CHOICE
Insurance forFloridians by Floridians

www.hcpci.com
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